S

21

s’ )
£
2‘@

\(r'
LREPd‘R e
6" % = e

”

hoso

HOSA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
EDBBRBERAT
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RASBFESTMKRILZERAE)
Stock Code f& {3 X5% - 02200

.f)

i » gﬂ»" |




CONTENTS B &%

Corporate Information

NEIER

Financial Highlights
M E

Key Financial Ratios

TEPHLLX

Chairman’s Statement

E=ERMmGE

Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEETwm R

Major Events

REFRD

Directors and Senior Management
EEREREERE

Corporate Governance Re
PN =R AN

Environmental and Social Responsibility Report
BRI EEERS

Report of the Directors

EFgWmE

Financial Section

2B

Five Years Financial Summary

RS

10

32

37

45

56

69

87

176



Corporate Information
AREHR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXY

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Shi Hongliu (Chairman) PR E(EER)
Mr. Shi Hongyan (Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) FEBIEL £ (BIEFERRITHABE)
Mr. Shi Zhixiong HeREHE A

Mr. Lui Wai Ming (Chief Financial Officer) EERBEE(EEIFE)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAFBTESE

Ms. Ko Yuk Lan mEEZL

Mr. Yao Ge R SEE

Mr. He Wenyi CIpE-F e
BOARD COMMITTEES ERXZERT
Audit Committee EEAE

Ms. Ko Yuk Lan (Chairladly) S ERELT(FE)
Mr. Yao Ge PR EE

Mr. He Wenyi A& L&
Nomination Committee REZAE

Mr. Yao Ge (Chairman) kXA (L)

Mr. Shi Hongyan e HE S A

Mr. He Wenyi A& L&
Remuneration Committee FANEEE

Mr. Yao Ge (Chairman) kA (L)

Mr. Shi Zhixiong FEEHE &

Mr. He Wenyi CIpE-F e

Risk Management Committee REERERY

Mr. Shi Hongliu (Chairman) MR (EE)
Mr. Shi Hongyan FESSIE S

Mr. Shi Zhixiong FEEHE A&

Mr. Lui Wai Ming BRI
REGISTERED OFFICE MR
Cricket Square Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681 P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111 Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands Cayman Islands
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG EETEEXRIBE
Unit 1902, 19/F BB

Far East Finance Centre BB 169

16 Harcourt Road RES A

Hong Kong 19121902 F
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES BiERE

Mr. Shi Hongliu MeAE R ST

Mr. Chiu Ming King AR LA

2 2017 ANNUAL REPORT FE#% i



COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chiu Ming King

THE CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
SMP Partners
(Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor
24 Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586
Grand Cayman, KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shop 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PLACE OF LISTING
The Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”)

STOCK CODE
2200

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China, Jinjiang Branch
Bank of China (Hong Kong)

AUDITOR

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8/F, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central
Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISOR

Luk & Partners

In Association with

Morgan, Lewis & Bockius

Suites 1902-09, 19th Floor
Edinburgh Tower, The Landmark

15 Queen'’s Road Central, Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.hosa.cn

Corporate Information

=] &= IR
NEEHR
LRWE
AR A
FRNEIERMEFERLR

SMP Partners

(Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor
24 Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586
Grand Cayman, KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

FREFERLE
BEmRBABRERAT
&5

B

SEAERI83H

S
17#1712-1716 =

LRy
BEABARBHAAERDR (B ER

B {7 L3R

2200

ERERBIT
RER (T BT T
RERTT(EE)

o4 ]

SR EIE
DEBEAD

BB

IR ATIE 1 0%
AFARESE

AR

B At 6 (2 B B A5 R

R [EEAR BK 55 5 2 B B 75 P 44
BEPIREFAREHR 155
BEMESAERNE
191£1902-09%F

H

www.hosa.cn

HOSA International Limited i& VBB RE AR

3




Financial Highlights

M RE

For the year ended 31 December/ HE12A31HILEE, Change (%)
As at 31 December #12A31H 2017 2016 B8)(%)
Financial highlight (RMB million) BERE(AR®EET)
Revenue B 1,198.8 1,103.5 8.6
Gross profit =75 500.1 567.3 (11.8)
Profit before taxation IR 292.4 327.2 (10.6)
Profit for the year attributable to equity AN A AR R PG
shareholders of the Company FEAHE 246.5 268.8 (8.3)
Total comprehensive income for the year — ARNA Al B FE(L
attributable to equity shareholders of FEEEWERTE
the Company 265.1 254.5 4.2
Earnings before interest, tax, BRAE - BB ER
depreciation and amortisation BHATEF 325.0 341.3 (4.8)
Total equity attributable to equity TSR R R (L i 1B R
shareholders 2,032.6 1,856.2 9.5
Total assets BAE 3,028.6 2,457.0 23.3
Financial ratios Bt
Net debt to shareholders’ fund (%) TFEFERRE R LR(%) Net cash Net cash N/A
BHRE FRE @M
Interest coverage (times) FMEERE(EE) 13.3 77.0 (82.7)
Financial information per share BRMERH(AR¥ERT)
(RMB million)
Earnings il 0.15 0.16 (6.3)
Dividends [iEdSH 0.051 0.057 (10.5)
Equity attributable to equity holders A AELER 1.22 1.11 9.9
REVENUE %% TOTAL ASSETS #3&E NET PROFIT #i¥) EQUITY #&
(RMB million) (A R E =)  (RMB million) (AREE&ET) (RMB million) (ARBEET) (RMB million) (A R &ET)
1,400 3,500 400 2,500
1200 11035 1,198.8 3,000 3,028.6 2,250 20326
,103. 2,000
1,000 2,500] 24570 280 268.8 1’750 =
; ' : 246.5 '
800 2,000 1,500
200 1,250
600 1,500 1,000
400 1,000 750
100 -
200 500 .
0 0 0 0
2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017
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Key Financial Ratios
FTERFLLR

Financial ratio BAFs L 2017 2016
Profitability ratios B HILFE
Gross profit margin FEH=E 41.7% 51.4%
Net profit margin before interest and tax FR A B R B IE BE A B 26.4% 30.0%
Net profit margin P e e 20.6% 24.4%
Return on equity %R B K 13.6% 14.3%
Return on total assets M EE R 9.7% 11.0%
Liquidity ratios mEE &
Current ratio MENEE = 2.75 times & 3.98 times &
Quick ratio REPH = 2.46 times & 3.61 times %
Stock turnover days FEREHH 132.8 days H 163.1 days H
Debtors’ turnover days FEUAR R A & 126.3 days H 99.7 days H
Creditors’ turnover days FERBRREE A 88.3 days H 122.7 days H
Capacity adequacy ratios BEXFEEILFE
Gearing ratio AfEL = 23.1% 13.0%
Debt to net worth ratio B FELE 42.1% 24.0%
Interest coverage (times) FEERNE(EE) 13.3 77.0
Others Hith
Net debt to shareholders’ funds FEFERRES LR Net cash Net cash
BRE FIRE
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Chairman’s Statement

EERHBEF

Mr. Shi Hongliu
Chairman & Executive Dire

REHERTEE -

EERRUTES




Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Hosa International
Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, collectively the
"Group”), | am pleased to present the Company’s annual results report
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

As of 31 December 2017, the revenue of the Group was RMB1,198.8
million, representing an increase of 8.6%. The net profit was RMB246.5
million, representing a decrease of 8.3%. The basic earnings per share
was RMBO0.15 representing a decrease of 6.3%. Overall operating
condition remained stable and sound.

Based on the Group's performance for the year of 2017, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK2.2 cents (equivalent
to approximately RMB1.85 cents) per share to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) as of 31 December 2017, and with the
interim dividend of HK3.9 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB3.3
cents) per share, the total dividend payout ratio for the year was
approximately 35%.

In 2017, the Group continuously focused on sports health market. The
Group used professional contests and activities as principal marketing
promotion strategy to create the advantage in differentiation in its
brand identity. The Company continuously sponsored fitness, aerobics
and beauty contest, and devoted more efforts in the sponsorships of
professional swimming competitions, including title sponsored the
National Sports Academy Swimming Championships, the National
Swimming Championships, the Adolescents Swimming Championships
in various provinces and cities, titled sponsorships for Youth Diving
Championships and other sports programs. The Group totally sponsored
nearly a hundred of professional competitions and title sponsored
nearly ten provincial swimming teams and swimming contests of
certain provinces. Meanwhile, the Group had in-depth cooperation
with Fédération Internationale de Natation Association (“FINA"). The
group title sponsored the FINA 10 km Marathon Swimming World
Cup and sponsored Diving Series. The Group is the sole strategic
partner with FINA for launch of its celebration activities for the Annual
Awards Ceremony and title sponsored the “Hosa Global Swimming
and Urban Tourism Development Summit Forum”, which promoted the
popularization and development of China’s national fitness and created
the professional image and strategic value of the Hosa brand.

EERHBEF

AABREREDBBERAR(ARQF] - &
BEMEBERR A rEEDESS([£
£2€ IE2AQAREHE2017F12A8318 1K
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#1,198.8A &L ' b EF LF8.6% @ JFFIHE
BARKE246. 5887 LEF TIHK8.3% °
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6.3% ' BEBEBLZFURARRIEBETEMERMNK
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Chairman’s Statement

EERHBEF

In 2017, Group sought to develop, transform and upgrade itself in four
aspects, namely new retail business, brand segmentation, product
structure optimization and reform of the distribution channels. Meanwhile,
the Group was awarded various awards, including the China Association
for Quality Inspection Awards (B 5, E %517 € 1278), Hosa Brand
Swimwear Ranked First in The Market for Similar Products and Top Ten
Innovative Textile Products of Year 2017 (2017F E &4+ KABIFTE ).
And once again listed on the China’s 500 Most Valuable Brands assessed
by the World Brand Lab with brand value amounting to RMB5.676 billion.
The Group mainly adopted the following measures in year 2017:

1. established new retail department and carry out related work,
implement the strategic development direction of new retail and
online and offline sales integration, and lay the foundation for new
retail business;

2. on the basis of professionalism in swimming, fitness and yoga,
the Group strengthened the development of youth products,
and innovated and improved the structure of sports and health
products;

3. through the title sponsorship of provincial swimming teams,
promote the construction of channels for schools, professional
venues and group purchase, and open up the youth consumer
market.

In recent years, PRC State Council of several opinions regarding the
sports and health industry. In particular, the 19th National Congress of
Communist Party of China has upgraded the national fitness program
into a national strategy. This provides a major development opportunity
for the development of the health service industry and sports service
industry. The plan stated that, by 2020, the number of people who do
exercises once or more a week will reach 700 million, the number of
people who frequently do exercises will reach 435 million, and the total
scale of sports consumption will reach RMB1.5 trillion. National fitness
will form a new focal point for economic growth. Meanwhile, with the
rise in Internet popularization rate in China and changes in consumption
habits, the Group will focus on the promotion of the following tasks in
year 2018:

1. to continue to promote “Hosa new retail”, including implementation
of integration of online and offline sales, establishment of brand
new online to offline function, improvement in consumption
experience of customers through ordering products via mobile
applications and providing mobile payment service at our offline
stores as well as other services;
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Chairman’s Statement

2. to continue to broaden sports and health products mix, integrate
sports and health products and services to explore new business
growth drivers based on users’ requirements;

3. to continue to promote cooperation by titled sponsorship for
various sports and health events, and enhance the professionalism
and reputation of the brand.

4. to deepen the expansion of professional and group purchase
channels and improve the coverage of sales channels.

In recent years, the Group has been under transformation and upgrade,
which in turn had a certain impact on the performance indicators.
However, the Group believes that with its efforts in the promotion of
its new retail business, the implementation of membership system,
and further optimisation of the strategic layout of sports and health
ecosphere, which will sharpen its competitive edge in the sports and
health sector and build up its competitiveness in long term, in turn
expanding the room for future development in effective manner and
creating greater value for and returns to customers and shareholders.

The contributions and support from the senior management, staff,
partners, consumers and shareholders of the Group are the cornerstone
and incentive for continuous development of the Group. | would like to
convey my sincere gratitude to everyone who supports and trusts the
Group.

Shi Hongliu
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018
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MARKET OVERVIEW

In recent years, the State Council issued a number of policies,
proposing vigorous efforts in developing mass sports programs,
advocating a new trend of comprehensive fitness and promoting
the establishment of Healthy China. The plan stated that, by 2020,
the number of people who frequently do exercise will reach 435
million, and the total scale of sports consumption will reach RMB1.5
trillion. National fitness will promote industrial development, and
form new economic growth driver. The promising development
trend of the sports and health industry creates favourable external
conditions for the Group, which possesses competitive resources
of the related industry, to implement the strategy of sports health
industry and the successful transformation and upgrade.

In 2017, the gross domestic product (“GDP") was increased by
6.9%, representing an increase as compared with the growth of
6.7% last year. Domestic online retail business continued to grow
rapidly, the national online retail sales had reached RMB7.18 trillion
for the year, representing a year-on-year increase of 32.2%. In view
of this, the Group will actively promote the development of new
retail business.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT FE#HE

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

In 2017, the Group continued to actively promote innovations
in respect of branding, sales channels and retail outlets and the
transformation and upgrade of the enterprise. Although there was
a decline in net profit as compared with the same period of last
year, the operating condition was still healthy in general and the
risks remained controllable, which are in line with the expectation
on the fluctuating performance of the Group during the stage of
transformation and upgrade. The strategy of sports and health
industry has been implemented, which provides the Group with a
greater room for development.

The Group’s revenue for 2017 amounted to RMB1,198.8 million
(2016: RMB1,103.5 million), representing an increase of 8.6%
as compared with the same period of last year. The profit for
the year attributable to the shareholders of the Group amounted
to RMB246.5 million (2016: RMB268.8 million), representing a
decrease of 8.3% as compared with the same period of last year.

(a) Products

Currently, the Group's sports and health products and
equipment are indoor sportswear, including fitness wear
and swimwear. In 2017, with the emphasis on sports and
fitness, the Group developed new products which met the
professional needs of sports so as to optimise its product
structure. As of 31 December 2017, the Group's fitness
wear and swimwear achieved sales revenue of RMB432.9
million and RMB582.2 million (2016: RMB540.4 million and
RMB563.1 million respectively), representing a decrease of
19.9% and an increase of 3.4% respectively as compared to
the same period last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERW RO

(b)

(c)

Branding

In order to meet the multi-faceted demand from sports and
health communities, the Group currently possesses two
brands of products, namely Hosa and Water Cube. In 2017,
the Group continued putting more effort on the promotion of
Hosa as a brand in professional competitions and activities. As
a title sponsor of the FINA Marathon Swimming World Cup
and Diving Series and being the global partner of FINA, the
Group sponsored, including but not limited to, the Marathon
Swimming World Cup and the diving tournament of FINA
World Cup. The Group also continued the promotion of and
develop the independent sale channels for Water Cube
brand apparel, and by leveraging its brand influence, high
professional standard and price-performance ratio, the Group
continued to expand sales in the mass swimwear market. As
of 31 December 2017, the Hosa brand revenue amounted to
RMB876.5 million (2016: RMB963.2 million), representing a
decrease of 9.0% as compared with the same period in 2016,
while the Water Cube brand apparel's revenue amounted to
RMB138.7 million (2016: RMB140.3 million), representing a
decrease of 1.1% as compared with the same period in 2016.

Channels and Sales Outlets

In 2017, the Group strengthened the existing offline
retail outlets. At the same time, the Group improved the
cooperation model with distributors by giving distributors a
higher level of flexibility in marketing activities to respond
to market changes in a more rapid manner. In addition, the
Group will actively promote “Hosa new retail” to integrate
online and offline resources and sufficiently explore
opportunities for “Internet+".
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(d)

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENmE D

Marketing and Consumer Relations

Focusing on promoting the lifestyle as being natural,
joyful and healthy through the participation in sports, the
Group continued to carry out accurate and effective brand
promotion and marketing campaigns which focused on its
target customers, and brought about delightful and pleasant
experience in sports and health to its consumers. In 2017,
other than the continuous promotion and development
of national fitness, the Group also actively sponsored
adolescents swimming competitions to nurture talented
sports players and athletes for the country, while fulfilling its
social responsibilities by enhancing the physical health and
health awareness of adolescents and improving the health of
national citizens.

(d)
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In 2017, the Group continuously focused on sports health
market. The Group used professional contests and activities
as principal marketing promotion strategy to create the
advantage in differentiation in its brand identity. The Company
continuously sponsored fitness, aerobics and beauty contest,
and devoted more efforts in the sponsorships of professional
swimming competitions, including title sponsored the
National Sports Academy Swimming Championships,
the National Swimming Championships, the Adolescents
Swimming Championships in various provinces and cities,
titled sponsorships for Youth Diving Championships and
other sports programs. The Group totally sponsored nearly
a hundred of professional competitions and title sponsored
nearly ten provincial swimming teams and swimming
contests of certain provinces. Meanwhile, the Group had in-
depth cooperation with Fédération Internationale de Natation
Association (“FINA"). The group title sponsored the FINA 10
km Marathon Swimming World Cup and sponsored Diving
Series. The Group is the sole strategic partner with FINA
for launch of its celebration activities for the Annual Awards
Ceremony and title sponsored the “Hosa Global Swimming
and Urban Tourism Development Summit Forum”, which
promoted the popularization and development of China’s
national fitness.

Management Discussion and Analysis
SN =R
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(e)

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWN D

The above promotional events received relatively satisfactory
response in the market, and the brand influence and
professional status of Hosa were also effectively promoted.

Product Research and Development

Equipped with nearly 20 years of experience in indoor
sportswear research and development, rich professional
knowledge and technological build-up, the Group has
established a seasoned research and development team
for indoor sports apparel that is familiar with the demand
of indoor sportswear in China’s consumer market. The
Group has created a globalized and professional research
and development system formed by domestic and foreign
professional cooperating institutions including Hosa
International Beijing Design Centre, Hosa International
Fujian Technology Centre, French Design Studio, function
and prototype expert team from Japan as well as The Asian
Fitness Academy, which enabled the Group to continuously
enhance its competitive strengths in terms of the
professional design, fashion design, functional development
and technology of indoor sportswear and thus maintained the
market competitive edge of the Group's products. In addition,
Hosa obtained the certification for competition swimwear
of FINA, in which Hosa is the only enterprise obtained such
certification in the PRC up to now.
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(f)

Financial Review
Revenue
By operating segments

Revenue of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2017 was RMB1,198.8 million (2016: RMB1,103.5
million), representing an increase of 8.6% as compared to the
revenue for the financial year ended 31 December 2016. The
following table sets forth the sources of revenue by operating

(f)

and Analysis

KL B

NEEEZE2017F12 A318 154
BFEMEXEAARE1,198.8
BEL(2016F : ARE1,103.5
BEL) REE2016F12A4
STHIMEBRFEMNEERTE LA

segments in the Group's operations: 8.6% o NERHIIANEBIZERSK
& EBEI D KA ZRIR |
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31ALLEE
2017 2016

RMB’000 %  RMB'000 %

ABRBFT B2R AR%Tr Bk
Domestic sales B AHE

Swimwear — Hosa KB — &S 302,614 25.2 341,566 31.0
Swimwear TKIEE)

— Water Cube —IKLTT 138,726 11.6 140,295 12.6
Fitness wear — Hosa & il — & 431,502 36.0 540,067 49.0
Fabric mEt 166,894 13.9 - -
Others EAth 8,049 0.7 - -

Subtotal /NET 1,047,785 87.4 1,021,928 92.6
Overseas sales EINEE
Swimwear — Hosa KEBEH) &Y 140,901 11.8 81,253 7.4
Fitness wear — Hosa & & wmn— kD 1,437 0.1 359 0.0
Fabric itk 8,646 0.7 - -
Subtotal iS5 150,984 12.6 81,612 7.4
Total st 1,198,769 100.0 1,103,540 100.0

Domestic sales increased from RMB1,021.9 million for the
financial year ended 31 December 2016 to RMB1,047.8
million for the financial year ended 31 December 2017,
representing an increase of 2.5%. Overseas sales increased
from RMB81.6 million for the financial year ended 31
December 2016 to RMB151.0 million for the financial year
ended 31 December 2017, representing an increase of
85.0%. Given that the market potential remains relatively
large in China, the Group will continue to focus on its sales
efforts in the PRC market in the coming years.
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Cost of sales

Cost of sales of the Group primarily consisted of production
costs and procurement costs of finished products from
external sources. Production costs include raw material costs,
labour costs as well as manufacturing overhead incurred in
the production of swimwear, fitness wear and fabric. The
following table sets forth a breakdown of the cost of sales for
the Group’s products:

HERZE

AEERHEERA TR BREE

PR Ko A SN BB R B B AR O A
EERABRRBREEKES BH
B0 B A R EE A Y SRR
BIRANBIEER - TRHET
NSRBI fn O SR B XA BAAR ¢

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLLEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ABR#TFIT B2R ARETT B2

Raw materials R 554,774 79.4 405,712 75.7
Labour ST 56,330 8.1 50,297 9.4
Manufacturing overhead SEEA 20,452 29 17,213 3.2

Procurement costs of X SR ER S A AR
finished products 67,100 9.6 62,991 1.7
698,656 100.0 536,213 100.0

Raw material costs primarily refer to the costs of procuring
raw materials used in the production of our products, such as
fabrics, threads and ancillary clothing materials. For the year
ended 31 December 2017, the average purchase price for the
Group's key raw materials was RMB40.2 (2016: RMB53.4)
per kilogram, which was lower than that for the year ended
31 December 2016.

Certain production and processing procedures of the Group's
products, primarily fabric manufacturing, fabric printing and
dyeing as well as fabric cutting, sewing and stitching, are
outsourced to external contract manufacturers. The Group
provides fabric materials to contract manufacturers for
processing and pay outsourced processing and service fees.
Such outsourced processing and service fees are categorized
under the Group’s raw material costs. Labour costs consisted
of salaries, benefits and other forms of compensation paid to
the Group's production staff. Manufacturing overhead mainly
includes depreciation of production facilities, costs associated
with operating our facilities including electricity, water,
maintenance costs, etc.

EMRRAEBERBEERE
EESFTANEME (nmEE - 4R
B RBEERKM B BN - HE
2017912318 ILEE - ANEE
FEERMBNFEFEHRBEEEA
TAREA0.27T(2016%F « ARE
53.470) ' (ERE£2016F 127
3THIFENEBERS -

AEBEMRMWE TEEMT SR
(E2REMEUE - EHER -
LB N 58 4)) SN T S BB EY N
BEER - AEBIREEEAHF
HINREERETNT - 2
SMBRFENT RRBE - ZFIN
BEAEMNIRBREEIBEAS
B R R AR T © 88 TR
BEAAEEEES TXMHH
T B REMHERS - &
ERIERREEREHE &
R B (EFR R AR (IR E R
ERA)E
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of the cost of TREHIREEDHE D HHE
sales by operating segments: FXZASERAR -

Year ended 31 December
#F12A31ALLEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ABRSFT B2R AR%TrT EEoNa

Swimwear — Hosa KEE) — & 234,535 33.6 198,866 37.0
Swimwear — Water Cube KEE) — KT 84,828 12.2 83,524 15.6
Fitness wear — Hosa & mmm—ED 217,339 31.1 253,823 47.4
Fabric Tkt 156,036 223 - -
Others Hi 5,918 0.8 - -
698,856 100.0 536,213 100.0
Gross profit 7
Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December AREBEZE2017F12831H 1k
2017 was RMB500.1 million (2016: RMB567.3 million), FENEMNAARES00188
representing a decrease of 11.8% as compared to that of T7L(2016%F : AR¥567.3E5&
the year ended 31 December 2016. Gross profit margin of TT)  BEE2016F 128318 1
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 was 41.7% FREFAD11.8% ° HZE2017912
(2016: 51.4%). RA31BIEFEREENENES

41.7%(20164F : 51.4%) °
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's TREFIREE D IE DR ARE
gross profit from operations and gross profit margin by B4 FTSEF M EF R4
operating segments:

Year ended 31 December

HE12A31HLLEE
2017 2016

Gross Gross
Gross Profit Gross Profit
Profit Margin Profit Margin
E# EfE EAH FERE
RMB’000 %  RMB'000 %
ABRETTT B2R AR%Tr Bk
Swimwear — Hosa IKEH) —END 208,980 41.8 223,953 39.5
Swimwear — Water Cube KBE) — KL T 53,898 10.8 56,771 10.0
Fitness wear — Hosa 5w — & 215,600 43.1 286,603 50.5
Fabric mrt 19,504 3.9 - 0.0
Others Eh 2,131 0.4 - 0.0
Total AFr 500,113 100.0 567,327 100.0

Other revenue HA

Other revenue of the Group primarily consisted of
government grants and interest income from interest-bearing
bank deposits. The government grants were provided by
provincial or prefectural government authorities in the form
of unconditional subsidies as recognition for the Group’s
contribution to the local economy through the Group's
business operation and achievements as one of the core
enterprises in the local cluster of enterprises. Other revenue
decreased from RMB57.9 million in 2016 to RMB41.3 million
in 2017, representing a decrease of 28.6%. Such decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in the aggregate amount of
government grants, which amounted to RMB2.3 million in
2017 (2016: RMB12.6 million).

AEBNEMBATERERFA
AL KA BRITE A F B
A o BT AL T B & BT Bk R R
FFH R A AR B BN = 1R
e UEEAERBREREE
Hib HEENERI R A EBIER
WHITEBERZOLEEZ B
BEE o U A 2016 AR
¥57 98 &L NFEE2017FMA
R¥41358T + TFE28.6% °
BB TEREEHN2017EHBF
HENBESEERRY  £EAA
R 3B T(20165F « AR
12.6B&7T) ©
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Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses consisted primarily of
advertising and promotion expenses, remuneration and
employee benefits for our sales and marketing personnel,
rental expenses, packaging and transportation expenses,
depreciation and amortisation expenses of our properties used
for sales and marketing activities and other miscellaneous
expenses. Advertising and promotion expenses primarily
include fees paid for event sponsorship and television,
magazine and billboard advertising. Selling and distribution
expenses decreased from RMB185.7 million in 2016 to
RMB119.7 million in 2017, representing a decrease of 35.5%.
Selling and distribution expenses represented approximately
10.0% of the revenue in 2017 (2016: 16.8%).

Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses consisted
primarily of remuneration and employee benefits for the
Group’s administrative staff, travel and transportation
expenses, general office expenses and other miscellaneous
expenses. Administrative and other operating expenses were
RMB101.8 million in 2017 (2016: RMB109.2 million). The
administrative and other operating expenses to total revenue
was 8.5% in 2017, which was lower than 9.9% of the same
period of last year.

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs primarily consisted of interest
charged to the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings.
Total finance costs increased from RMB4.3 million in 2016
to RMB23.8 million in 2017, representing an increase of
452.8%. As at 31 December 2017, the bank borrowings of
the Group amounted to RMB377.1 million (2016: RMB320.6
million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Profit from operations and dividend

The profit from operations for the year ended 31 December
2017 decreased by 4.6% to RMB316.2 million as compared
with RMB331.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2016. Interim dividend of HK3.9 cents (equivalent to
approximately RMB3.3 cents) per share for the first half of the
year of 2017 was declared and paid to the Shareholders. For
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board has proposed
a final dividend of HK2.2 cents (equivalent to approximately
RMB1.85 cents) per share, and with the interim dividend
of HK3.9 cents, the total dividend payout ratio for the year
was approximately 35%. The above proposed dividends
are subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Key financial ratios

The following table sets forth certain of the Group’s major
financial ratios as at 31 December of the year indicated:

BERE W RO

KEEERBHRFIRRE

HE2017F12A831BILEE » &
BEEERENREE20167F
12A3MHIEFEMARK331.5
BB NE46%EARE316.2
BHEJT - AARAMKETIK2017
FE FEFHPHREFR3.9E
IW(RAERHDARE33D) - RE
Z2017F12A31HILFE &%
B BRI KRR E FR2.28
W(FEERHDARE1.85%) » F
HERB3.98M - 2FLREEX
#936% ° LA FERIRTHREA
HFRRERERREFAF AL it
JHE ©

EEHFLE

TR AEBRIAIRFEHS
12A3MHNETEEH B XK -

2017 2016
Current ratio MENLL =& 2.75 time & 3.98 time f&
Quick ratio RELE =R 2.46 time & 3.61 time &
Inventory turnover days FEREEH 132.8 days H 163.1 days H
Debtors' turnover days FEWER R A A 126.3 days H 99.7 days H
Creditors’ turnover days FERTR B B 21 88.3 days H 122.7 days H
Gearing ratio BfE = 23.1% 13.0%
Working capital and working capital management B ETOREESLERE

The inventory turnover days of the Group were 132.8 days
for the year ended 31 December 2017 as compared to 163.1
days for the year ended 31 December 2016. The inventory
turnover days decreased by 30.3 days. The Group's debtors’
turnover days increased to 126.3 days for the year ended
31 December 2017 as compared to 99.7 days for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The Group generally allows credit
period ranging from 90 days to 180 days to customers.
The Group's creditors’ turnover days (including both trade
and bills payables) were 88.3 days for the year ended 31
December 2017 as compared to 122.7 days for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The overall working capital cycle
has increased from 140.1 days to 170.8 days. The overall
operation remained at a normal level.

REBEHZE2017F12A31B IEF
EMEFEEFAERASA132.88
MEZE2016F12A31BILFE A
163.18 - T & F# A& FF&30.3
H e REEEZE2017F12831H
IFFERERRREE B 2k A
£126.3H * M&EZ=2016F12A4
31BILFEAR99.7H - NREE—
BATREFRHEIOEHE180H
REEH - REBEHZE2017F12
A318 It FERMEMNIRKEEH
B(REESENREREMNE
&) A88.3H © MEIE2016412
A31BIEFER122.7H - 8
LEESHABBR140.1BEMNE
170.8H - BEEZEEEIENIE
K o
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The Group's primary objective of working capital
management is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for the Shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
Shareholders’ returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net current assets
of RMB1,727.5 million (2016: RMB1,760.8 million) of
which cash and bank deposits were RMB1,855.5 million
(2016: RMB1,709.0 million). Total bank borrowings as at 31
December 2017 were RMB377.1 million (2016: RMB320.6
million), while the bills payable were RMB157.9 million (2016:
RMB124.1 million). Notes payable as at 31 December 2017
was RMB321.1 million (2016: RMB Nil). The Group's gearing
ratio as at 31 December 2017 (total bank borrowings and
notes payable divided by total assets) was 23.1% (2016:
13.0%). The Group's transactions and the monetary assets
are principally denominated in Renminbi. The Group did not
experience any material difficulties in operations or liquidity
as a result of fluctuations in exchange rates during the year.
The Group adopts centralised financing and treasury policies
in order to ensure the Group's funding is utilised efficiently.
Conservative approach is adopted in monitoring foreign
exchange exposure and interest rate risk. The Group's
liquidity position remains strong and the Group possesses
sufficient cash and available banking facilities to meet its
commitments and working capital requirements. This strong
cash position enables the Group to explore investment and
business development opportunities when expanding its
market share in China.
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Use of Proceeds - Initial Public Offering g IBE - R LR E
The shares of the Company were listed on the main board of RABDF2011F12 816 B
the Stock Exchange on 16 December 2011 with net proceeds B X PR ERER - R REBIRBEE
from the global offering of approximately RMB488.6 million R8s B F B AARM488.6
(after deducting underwriting commissions and related BETUNREHEMS RAKRER
expenses). The amounts utilised as at 31 December 2017 are %) 12017F12A31BE & A
as follows: SR

As at 31 December 2017

#2017%£12A31H
Amount
of net Amount Remaining
Purposes of net proceeds Percentage proceeds utilised balance
FRrfa®E E5H
FBREBHEAE BAL BE &8 3:
(RMB (RMB (RMB
million) million) million)

(AE#¥ (A% (AR#
BExT) BET) BET)

1. Expansion of distribution network
TR 5 HHAEA 35% 171.0 171.0 =
2. Enhancement of brand image through
marketing and promotion
FHRMISHEERS ERmEER 25% 122.1 122.1 -
3. Expansion of production capacity
EFER 15% 73.3 7.0 66.3
4. Investment in research, design and
development activities
A%~ RET RFAZIEEEIRE 10% 48.9 48.9 =
5. Development and upgrading of supply chain and
information management systems
BRRITRHEREREREB AR 5% 24.4 - 244
6. Funding for working capital and
other general corporate purposes
REBEG A —RATAGEHRES 10% 48.9 48.9 -
100% 488.6 397.9 90.7
The Company does not intend to apply the remaining net AAREEIRANRARIHEA2011F12 A
proceeds for the purposes other than those disclosed in the 6EMBRER([HBIRER DATRE
prospectus of the Company dated 6 December 2011 (the SNE B BB e NATIS R IBHEE -
"Prospectus”).
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Use of Proceeds — Share Placements

On 17 September 2013, Ho Born Investment Holdings
Limited (“Ho Born"”), the Company and Goldman Sachs
(Asia) L.L.C., as the placing agent, entered into a placing and
subscription agreement pursuant to which the placing agent
agreed to procure purchasers to subscribe for 54,500,000
existing shares owned by Ho Born to not fewer than six
independent placees at the placing price of HK$2.85 per
share, and Ho Born conditionally agreed to subscribe, and
the Company agreed to allot and issue to Ho Born for such
number of subscription shares which is equivalent to the
number of shares actually placed under the placing at the
subscription price of HK$2.85 per share. Details of these
transactions are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 17 September 2013.

Approximately RMB116.9 million (after deducting
underwriting commissions and related expenses) was
raised from the subscription. The amounts utilised as of 31
December 2017 are as follows:

Management Discussion and Analysis
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FiieatBRE - REEE

MR2013F9H17H » EHIEEIE
BERAG(ERB]) - AR K&
SE(EMNABRETAR(EAR
ERE)FTL—HNEELRER
Bl RERBRRERMER
BAZSRERD2.858TZEE
EREER/EFH %A 254,500,000
IR ERD REETFRLRARE
?‘ﬁj%@a/\ & FBE B IR
ERERARGFE R E RS BE
BERETHENREBRLEEESR
f&192.858 T REERRE 2%
DB ZZBERERSD - 2%
RGZHBHRHIAAATAEA
20139 817H Z A ff »

%Li’dﬁﬁiﬁ,w\ﬁﬁgﬂa 9B

TTHEMB B8 e MERIFR X
fzi) ° A2017F12A31 B HH
ZEREIT

As at 31 December 2017

720175£12A31H
Amount
of net Amount Remaining
Purposes of net proceeds Percentage  proceeds utilised balance
FrieRE =% )i
FReREREAE BoL g &8 EREE
(RMB (RMB (RMB
million) million) million)
(AR% (AR% (AR#
B8x) &) g87)
1. Enhancement of brand image through
marketing and promotion
FRTSHEEREERAREIER 30% 35.0 35.0 -
2. Expansion of production capacity
ERER 15% 17.5 - 17.5
3, Investment in research, design and
development activities
HR - Rt RAZRBRE 40% 46.9 46.9 -
4, Funding for working capital and
other general corporate purposes
REBESLEM—MRATIARREEES 15% 17.5 17.5 -
100% 116.9 99.4 175
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The Company does not intend to apply the remaining net
proceeds for the purposes other than those disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 17 September 2013.

Apart from the capital raising activity mentioned above, the
Company has not conducted any equity fund raising activities
in the past 12 months from the date of this announcement.

Capital expenditure and capital commitments

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the capital
expenditure amounted to RMB17.8 million. As at 31
December 2017, the capital commitments amounted to RMB
Nil.

Foreign exchange risk management

Most of the sales and purchases of the Group are settled
in Renminbi, which is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. The fluctuations in Renminbi during the year did
not have any significant effect on the Group's results. The
Group is not exposed to any significant foreign exchange
risk. In addition, the Group will conduct periodic review of its
exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a workforce of
about 1,300 people. Salaries of employees are maintained
at competitive level and are reviewed annually, with close
reference to the relevant labour market and economic
situation. The Group has adopted share option schemes
whereby employees of the Group are granted options to
acquire shares in the Company. Good relationship has been
maintained between the Group and its employees. The Group
also provides internal training to staff and pays out bonuses
based on staff performance and profits of the Group.

For details on the Group’s employee policies, please refer to
Environmental and Social Responsibility Report set out on
pages 56 to 68 of this annual report.

Relationships with distributors and suppliers

The Group mainly sells its products to distributors, who
placed the Group's products to retail outlets for final sales.

(g)

(h)
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The Group would make on-site visits to distributors to
ensure that they comply with the terms of the distribution
agreement. It closely monitors the inventory and performance
of distributors by requiring them to submit sales reports. The
Group also provides distributors with various training and
support, provides guidance to distributors on optimizing their
product mix and offers them various tools and training in
inventory management. In addition, the Group offers frequent
training regarding its products, brand image, sales and
marketing strategies and company policies, and it supports
distributors during their marketing efforts. The Group believes
that such support motivates distributors and improves the
operational efficiency of the Group's sales and distribution
network.

Suppliers of the Group include raw material suppliers and
contract manufacturers. The Group has developed solid and
steady relationships with many of its key suppliers. Given
solid and steady relationships with the suppliers, the Group
believes that its suppliers generally provide supplies to the
Group with a priority and the Group has not experienced any
material shortage or delays in receiving supplies or services
from the suppliers during the track record period.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group. Major risks and uncertainties are summarised below.

Brand/Reputation Risk

The Company has established and maintained its Hosa
brand as an indoor sportswear brand that aims to provide
complete satisfaction in the functionality, comfort and style
of its products, primarily targeting customers with health
consciousness and spending power.

If the Group is unsuccessful in promoting its Hosa brand or
fails to maintain its brand position and market perception,
consumer acceptance of its Hosa brand may erode, and the
Group's business, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects may be materially and adversely affected.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Any negative publicity or disputes relating to the Group's
Hosa brand, products, sponsorship activities or management,
the loss of any award or accreditation associated with the
Group’s Hosa brand or products or the use of the “Hosa”
trademark or brand name by other businesses could
materially and adversely affect the Group's business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects.

Market Trend

The Group’s success depends on the market perception
and consumer acceptance of Hosa brand and the Group's
products, which in large part, rely on the Group's ability to
anticipate and respond to different consumer tastes in a
timely manner.

If the Group is unable to utilise new technologies and
processes, anticipate and respond to market and fashion
trends and consumer preferences in a timely manner,
demand for Hosa products may decrease. The Group's
business would also suffer if product creations or
modifications do not respond to the needs of customers, are
not appropriately timed with market opportunities or are not
effectively brought to market. Any failure by the Group to
offer products that respond to changing market and fashion
trends and consumer preferences, or any shift in market or
fashion trends and consumer preferences away from Hosa
brand and the Group’s products, could adversely affect
consumer interest in the Group's products.
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Competition

Currently, the Group’s swimwear and fitness wear products
face different levels of competition in their respective market
sectors. As the indoor sportswear market is ever-evolving and
competitors with similar brand positioning may emerge and
intensify the current competition, there can be no assurance
that the Group will be able to compete effectively against
competitors who may have greater financial resources,
greater scales of production, superior technology, better
brand recognition and a wider, more diverse and established
distribution network. To compete effectively and maintain the
Group's market share, the Group may be forced to, among
other actions, reduce prices, provide more sales incentives
to distributors, and increase capital expenditures, which may
in turn negatively affect the Group’s profit margins, business
and financial conditions and results of operations.

Operation of Distributors

As the Group's term of agreements with distributors is
generally 2 years, it is possible that their agreements with
the Group will not be renewed on favourable terms or at
all. If any of the Group's distributors terminates or does not
renew its distribution agreement with the Group, the Group
may not be able to replace such distributor with a new and
effective distributor with similar business scale in a timely
manner, on terms acceptable to the Group, or at all. If any
of the distributors ceases its business relationship with the
Group, the Group’s business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects could be materially and adversely
affected.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group mainly sold products to distributors, who
subsequently distributed our products to sub-distributors or
sold our products to end-consumers. The Group relies on
its distributors to oversee and ensure sub-distributors. The
sub-distributors’ failure to comply with the Group's policies,
such as aggressive discounting of the retail price of the
Group's products, could result in the erosion of goodwill, a
decrease in the market value of the Group’s Hosa brand and
an unfavourable public perception about the quality of the
Group's products, which in turn could result in a material
adverse effect on the Group's business, financial condition,
results of operation and prospects.

The Group has no control over distributors or sub-distributors’
practice of obtaining retail spaces within department stores.
If the Group’s distributors fail to secure retail spaces within
the department stores on commercially reasonable terms,
the Group's distributors may not be able to find alternative
locations in areas that offer similar business environments,
and the Group's competitors may move into such retail
spaces previously occupied by the Group's distributors. As a
result, the Group's sales performance may be materially and
adversely affected.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group's production process is carried out with low emissions
and low energy consumption, and it will not produce great amount
of pollutants. The Group has been endeavoring to ensure that the
production process is in compliance with the relevant environmental
rules and regulations. In the past, to the best of our knowledge the
Group has not been in breach of any relevant environmental rules
and regulations and has not been imposed any relevant penalty.
It is expected that the future operational activities of the Group
would not be significantly affected by the environmental policies.
For details on the Group's environmental policy, please refer to
Environmental and Social Responsibility Report set out on pages 56
to 68 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in mainland China while the Company is listed on the
Stock Exchange. The Group's operations accordingly shall comply
with relevant laws and regulations in mainland China and Hong
Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the
date of this report, to the best of our knowledge, the Group has
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in mainland
China and Hong Kong, and there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

LOOKING AHEAD

In recent years, PRC State Council of several opinions regarding
the sports and health industry. In particular, the 19th Communist
Party of China National Congress has upgraded the national fitness
program into a national strategy. This provides a major development
opportunity for the development of the health service industry and
sports service industry. The plan stated that, by 2020, the number
of people who do exercises once or more a week will reach
700 million, the number of people who frequently do exercises
will reach 435 million, and the total scale of sports consumption
will reach RMB1.5 trillion. National fitness will form a new focal
point for economic growth. Meanwhile, with the rise in Internet
popularization rate in China and changes in consumption habits, the
Group will focus on the promotion of the following tasks in year
2018:

1. to continue to promote “Hosa new retail”, including
implementation of integration of online and offline sales,
establishment of brand new online to offline function,
improvement in consumption experience of customers
through ordering products via mobile applications and
providing mobile payment service at our offline stores as well
as other services;

2. to continue to broaden sports and health products mix,
integrate sports and health products and services to explore
new business growth drivers based on users’ requirements;
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Management Discussion and Analysis

3. to continue to promote cooperation by titled sponsorship
for various sports and health events, and enhance the
professionalism and reputation of the brand.

4. to deepen the expansion of professional and group purchase
channels and improve the coverage of sales channels.

In recent years, the Group has been under transformation and
upgrade, which in turn had a certain impact on the performance
indicators. However, the Group believes that with its efforts in
the promotion of its new retail business, the implementation of
membership system, and further optimisation of the strategic
layout of sports and health ecosphere, which will sharpen its
competitive edge in the sports and health sector and build up its
competitiveness in long term, in turn expanding the room for future
development in effective manner and creating greater value for and
returns to customers and shareholders.
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DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible and has general powers for the management
and conduct of the business of the Group. The Board currently consists
of seven directors (the “Directors”, each a “Director”), including four
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The

Directors and Senior Management

EENRGNEIEE

BEF

ERgHARERB EEMRERBREEY
ABE—REERE EESANMMERES
(TEFDWEK  BRNERTEER =2
MIEHITER - TREJIBHEFENENE

following table sets forth information regarding members of the Board. B} o
Name Appointment Date Age Position Roles and Responsibilities
ok ={EEH FEE R BERRER
Mr. Shi Hongliu 2 September 2010 52 chairman and executive corporate strategic planning
Director and overall business
development of the Group
pEHER e 2010%9A2H EERRNITESR REE )RR BITER
ES e
Mr. Shi Hongyan 2 September 2010 49 vice chairman, chief developing and implementing
executive officer and operation plans, and
executive Director monitoring the overall
manufacturing activities of
the Group
BEBIE S A 2010%9A2H BIEER - THARE KR BRNEBASEEN S E S
WITEF MEBRBEERD
Mr. Shi Zhixiong 1 December 2015 44 executive Director overseeing the production and

MR

Mr. Lui Wai Ming

BEREsELE

2015%12A1H

1 April 2016 47

201654 H1H

WITES

executive Director and
chief finance officer

WITEELERVWKE

supply chain management of
the Group
FEREELERMBEETE

overseeing the finance and
capital market operation of
the Group
FEAREEVBERERTIHE
1
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Directors and Senior Management

EERGNEEE

Name

&

Appointment Date
=AM

Age

Position

B

Roles and Responsibilities

AERRE

Ms. Ko Yuk Lan

=mE#zt

Mr. Yao Ge

whx et

Mr. He Wenyi

ODE ¥

23 November 2011

2011411 A23H

7 June 2011

201146 H7H

1 December 2015

2015%12H1H
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56

58

45

independent non-executive
Director

BFBITES

independent non-executive
Director

BUFRITES

independent non-executive
Director

BIFRITESR

attending meetings of the
Board to perform duties, but
not participating in the day-
to-day management of the
business operations of the
Group
HEEEESHRABITRS -
B2 AREEEKLEN
HEER

attending meetings of the
Board to perform duties, but
not participating in the day-
to-day management of the
business operations of the
Group
HEEESSHABITRE -
BRg2EAEEEBLEN
HEER

attending meetings of the
Board to perform duties, but
not participating in the day-
to-day management of the
business operations of the
Group
HEESEERNEITEE -
BRg2EAEREKLEN
HEEE



Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Shi Hongliu

Aged 52, is the founder of the Hosa brand. He was appointed as the
chairman and executive Director on 2 September 2010. Mr. Shi has over
28 years of experience in the apparel industry and is primarily responsible
for the corporate strategic planning and overall business development of
the Group. From 1983 to 1996, he was a sole proprietor in the apparel
industry where he primarily engaged in distributing sportswear for women
in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou. From 1996 to 2011, he assumed
various positions at Fujian Province Jinjiang City Haosha Garments Co.,
Ltd. (“Haosha Garments”). From September 1996 to March 2000, he was
the chief brand manager of Haosha Garments responsible for formulating,
implementing brand strategy and improving the competitiveness of Hosa
brand. From March 2000 to March 2006, he was the general manager of
Haosha Garments responsible for developing and implementing business
development strategies and overseeing the overall administrative and
business activities of this company. From March 2006 to February 2011,
he was the supervisor of Haosha Garments. Since November 1997, he
has been a director of Haosha International (H.K.) Limited (“Haosha H.K.")
and is responsible for overlooking the operation, development strategy
as well as corporate investment activities of Haosha H.K. Since October
2005, being one of the founders of Haosha Industry (Fujian) Co., Ltd.
("Haosha Industry”), he has been the chairman of the board responsible
for overseeing the operation and investment activities of Haosha Industry
and general manager since January 2011. Mr. Shi Hongliu is a brother of
Mr. Shi Hongyan. Apart from being a Director, Mr. Shi Hongliu had not
been a director of any other listed company in the past three years.

Mr. Shi was selected as one of the “Top Ten Meritorious Entrepreneurs”
(T RINENDZEK) at China's International Fashion Week by China National
Textile and Apparel Council (FEI%5%E T3 1% <) in 2007, and “Brand
China Person of the Year (Apparel Industry)” (fi2mH B (REITE)FE
A#7) by Brand China Industry Alliance (§h&7 BIZE%58) in 2010. He is
also the honorary chairman of the Chamber of Commerce of Jinjiang in
Shanghai (ES&ETEERESR).
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EERGNEEE

Mr. Shi completed a diploma program for general managers of
enterprises (AB4£¥8R7E2) of China Europe International Business School
(R EREIPR T2 Fx) in December 2008.

Mr. Shi Hongliu is responsible for setting up overall future strategies
of the group, the financial and operational strategies and managing the
overall operations in Fujian Jinjiang and Beijing head office. Mr. Shi is
also the ultimate in-charge of the management accounting of the PRC
subsidiaries and the treasury functions of the Group.

Mr. Shi Hongyan

Aged 49, was appointed as the vice chairman, chief executive officer
and executive Director of the Company on 2 September 2010. Mr. Shi
Hongyan has over 20 years of experience in the apparel industry and is
primarily responsible for developing and implementing operation plans,
and monitoring the overall manufacturing activities of the Group. From
1988 to 1996, he was a sole proprietor in the apparel industry where
he primarily engaged in distributing sportswear for women in Beijing,
Shanghai and Guangzhou. From 1996 to 2011, he assumed various
positions at Haosha Garments. From September 1996 to March 2000,
he was the director of Haosha Garments responsible for establishing
management systems and overseeing the administrative and business
operations. From March 2000 to March 2006, he was the chief production
manager responsible for formulating and implementing the production
plans and supervising the production process. From March 2006 to
February 2011, he was the director and general manager of Haosha
Garments. Since October 2005, he has been the vice chairman of the
board of Haosha Industry. And from October 2005 to January 2011, he
was the general manager of Haosha Industry where he was responsible
for implementing production plans and overseeing the production
operation. Since January 2011, he has been the vice general manager of
Haosha Industry. Mr. Shi Hongyan is a brother of Mr. Shi Hongliu. Apart
from being a Director, Mr. Shi Hongyan had not been a director of any
other listed company in the past three years.
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Mr. Shi Hongyan currently assumes leadership roles in various
institutions, the details of which are set out in tabular format below.

Terms of Office
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Position

| i

EENRGNEIEE

TEMEIE S B AT 2 (BB T BB RN - &
BRTR#ES -

Name of Institution

BBl

August 2004-now
2004F8AES

September 2005-now
2005F9AZ%

February 2006-now
2006F2AES

July 2008-now
2008F7AES

August 2008-now
2008F8HES

2009-now

2009F &4

member of the first standing committee

BERGZEEZE

vice chairman of the first council

BEEEEgEE

vice chairman of the eighth council
ENERESRT

vice chairman of the second council
E_EEEgAgR

vice chairman of the second council
FEEFERER

member

%8

Quanzhou City Trademark Association

RMIERHE

Jinjiang City Textile and Apparel Association
EIMERERS

Jinjiang City Association of Industry and Commerce
Z)ITh Il

Quanzhou City Association of Quality and Technical
Supervision
RN RERNES RS

Fujian Province Apparel Industry Association

R RERAITERE

The Eleventh Jinjiang City Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference

TREARBAHEERF +—EEITRES

Mr. Shi Hongyan was selected as one of the First Outstanding Young
Enterprising Talents in Quanzhou (BERMEFEHEIZEAA) in April
2005 and Outstanding Young Entrepreneurs of Fujian Province (fB&%& &
FEF LK) in November 2006.

Mr. Shi Hongyan completed a diploma program for chief executive
officers of enterprises (> ¥ 425, MITEIL) of the Economics College of
Peking University (1L R Z40EE2FT) in 2003.

Mr. Shi Hongyan is mainly responsible for the public relationships of
the Group including attending different functions/events. He acts as the
spokesman in these event/functions.
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EEkSREERE

Mr. Shi Zhixiong

Aged 44, was appointed as the executive Director on 1 December 2015.
Mr. Shi Zhixiong worked at the research and development department of
Haosha Garments Co., Ltd. which is a fabric, dyeing and printing products
manufacturer, from 1996 to 2003 with his last position as manager.
Mr. Shi Zhixiong served as the sales director responsible for sales and
marketing development and deputy general manager responsible for
implementing business development strategies and overseeing the
business activities of Haosha Garments Co., Ltd. from 2003 to 2010 and
from 2010 to 2015 respectively. Mr. Shi Zhixiong possesses profound
knowledge and experiences in production and supply chain management.

Mr. Lui Wai Ming

Aged 47, was appointed as the chief financial officer of the Company on
7 August 2015 and as an executive Director of the Company on 1 April
2016. He holds an Executive Master Degree in Business Administration
from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in the People’s Republic
of China. Mr. Lui is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lui has extensive experience in
auditing, accounting, investment, financial and corporate management for
over 20 years. Mr. Lui is currently an independent non-executive director
of Tansh Global Food Group Co., Ltd, a main board listed company in
Hong Kong (stock code: 3666) and Ernest Borel Holdings Limited, a
main board listed company in Hong Kong (stock code: 1856). He was an
independent non-executive director of Tai Shing International (Holdings)
Limited, a GEM board listed company in Hong Kong (stock code: 8103)
from 22 May 2014 to 29 Jan 2016 and Golden Shield Holdings (Industrial)
Limited, a main board listed company in Hong Kong (stock code: 2123)
from 12 January 2015 to 11 May 2015, during the period he focused on
investigation into the outstanding audit issues and the legal proceedings,
and the company is currently under liquidation.
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan

Aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
23 November 2011. She has over 25 years of experience in financial
management and corporate finance and had worked in an international
accounting firm and other companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. She is currently the chief financial officer and company
secretary of China Lilang Limited (FEIFIERABRAF]) (stock code: 1234).
Ms. Ko is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants.
Apart from being a Director, Mr. Ko had not been a director of any other
listed company in the past three years. Ms. Ko graduated from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a professional diploma in management
accountancy in November 1984.

Mr. Yao Ge

Aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 7
June 2011. After his graduation in September 1994 to late 1994, Mr. Yao
was independently exploring the development of Japanese traditional
garments and its overall apparel market in Japan. In December 1994, he
returned to China and independently explored the Chinese apparel market
and industrial textile structure. In October 1996, he started working at the
marketing centre of China Fashion Association (T BIARZE &8 51FT 1% &), and
was later promoted to the deputy secretary general in December 1999
and the supervisor of the marketing centre in February 2001. He was
appointed as the deputy director of China’s Professional Fashion Models
Committee (PEIBBEREEIFZEE) in July 2002. Since May 2003,
he has been the chairman of the board of directors of Beijing Oriental
Bentley Culture Development Co., Ltd. (t REFEFSLER L.
Apart from being a Director, Mr. Yao had not been a director of any listed
company in the past three years.

Mr. Yao received silver award for Tokyo 21st Clothing Fashion Paintings
and Crafts Exhibition ((RRE21ERHRITEMF IER) in 1993 and
recognition award for Japanese Apparel Fashion Design Contest ( H 7&K
BR80T aRET L) in 1994

Mr. Yao received his college diploma in journalism from Shenyang Radio
and Television University (&[5 EEERKZE) in November 1988 and
went to Japan for advanced study in 1990. He completed a two-year
Japanese language course at Asahi International School (¥f H BIFR£4%) in
September 1992 and a two years' advanced study in garment design at
Tokyo Shimizu Institute (BB 5/57KZ%) in September 1994 and received
a certificate in garment design.
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Directors and Senior Management

EERGNEEE

Mr. He Wenyi

Aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-executive director on
1 December 2015. Mr. He Wenyi is the deputy director of the Peking
University Institute for Sport Science as well as the executive officer
and the researcher of China Institute for Sports Value under the Peking
University.

Mr. He Wenyi studied in the Department of Philosophy of Peking
University, College of Philosophy and Sociology of Beijing Normal
University and School of Public Administration of Central South
University. He focused on the researches regarding cultural industries and
sports industries in the Peking University Institute for Cultural Industries
from 2001 to 2009.He works at the Peking University Institute for Sport
Science from 2009 up to now and his major research areas are sports
industries, cultural industries, intellectual property rights, philosophy
(ethics, religious studies), etc.

Mr. He Wenyi participated in the research and formulation of the reform
and development policies of national sports industries and has played a
role in the formulation of development plans of winter sports in China.
Mr. He was also the associate editor of Annual Report on Development
of Sports Industry in China, the associate editor of Development Report
of Sports Industry in Beijing, the editorial board member of the Annual
Report of Chinese Cultural Industries, the professional assessor of
Guiding Fund - 2 - for the Development of Sports Industry in Beijing, the
professional assessor of Support Fund for Cultural Industries in Beijing.
Moreover, he hosted the formulation of 13th Five-Year Plan for Sports
Industry in various counties in Beijing.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chiu Ming King was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) on 7 August 2015. Mr. Chiu
currently serves as the executive director of Corporate Services of Vistra
Corporate Services (HK) Limited. He has over 10 years of experience
in the company secretarial field and provides professional services to
various listed companies.

Mr Chiu has been an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (“HKICS") since 2003 and became a fellow member of
the HKICS since September 2015. He has been a member of the
Membership Committee and Professional Services Panel of HKICS.

Mr Chiu obtained a bachelor of arts from University of Toronto in Canada
in June 1999 and received a master of arts in professional accounting
and information systems from City University of Hong Kong in November
20083.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures with a view to being a transparent
and responsible organization which is open and accountable to the
Shareholders. The Board strives to adhere to the principles of corporate
governance set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) and has adopted sound corporate governance practices to meet
the legal and commercial standards, focusing on areas such as internal
control, fair disclosure and accountability to the Shareholders to ensure
the transparency and accountability of all operations of the Company. The
Company believes that effective corporate governance is an essential
factor to create more value for the Shareholders. The Board will continue
to review and improve the corporate governance practices of the Group
from time to time to ensure that the Group is led by an effective Board in
order to optimise return for the Shareholders.

During the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017, the
Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

THE BOARD

The Board consists of seven Directors, comprising four executive
Directors, and three independent non-executive Directors. The executive
Directors are Mr. Shi Hongliu (Chairman), Mr. Shi Hongyan (Vice
Chairman), Mr. Shi Zhixiong and Mr. Lui Wai Ming. The independent non-
executive Directors are Ms. Ko Yuk Lan, Mr. He Wenyi and Mr. Yao Ge.
Among members of the Board, Mr. Shi Hongliu is the elder brother of
Mr. Shi Hongyan. Save as disclosed herein, to the best knowledge of
the Company, there is no other financial, business or family relationship
among the members of the Board. The functions and duties conferred
on the Board include convening Shareholders’ meetings and reporting
on the work of the Board to the Shareholders at Shareholders’ meetings
as may be required by applicable laws, implementing resolutions passed
at Shareholders’ meetings, determining the Company's business plans
and investment plans, formulating the Company’s annual budget and
final accounts, formulating the Company's proposals for dividend and
bonus distributions as well as exercising other powers, functions and
duties as conferred on it by the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles”) and applicable laws. The senior management is delegated
with the authority and responsibilities by the Board for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group. The Board meets regularly
to review the financial and operating performance of the Company,
and considers and approves the overall strategies and policies of the
Company. The composition of the Board is well-balanced with the
Directors having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and
strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business
of the Group. The executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise to the Company.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of its independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmation, the
Company considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors
are independent and that they have met the specific independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors have separate and independent access to the Company's
senior management to fulfill their duties and, upon reasonable request,
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company's expense. All Directors also have access to the Company
Secretary who is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures,
and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed. An agenda and
accompanying Board/Board committee papers are distributed to the
Directors/Board committee members with reasonable notice in advance
of the meetings. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
committees, which records in sufficient detail the matters considered
by the Board and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by
Directors or dissenting views expressed, are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by Directors.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company, and considers and approves the overall
strategies and policies of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are two distinct
and separate positions, which are held by Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi
Hongyan, respectively, both being executive Directors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Chiu Ming King. Mr. Chiu, who is the
executive director of Corporate Services of Vistra Corporate Services
(HK) Limited providing professional services to various listed companies.
Although Mr. Chiu is not a full time employee of the Company, he is
responsible for advising the Board on governance matters. Details of the
biography of Mr. Chiu are set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, during the year
ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Chiu received not less than 15 hours
of the relevant professional training. The primary contact person of the
Company with the Company Secretary is the financial manager of the
Company, Mr. Hui Siu Wing.
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Corporate Governance Report

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for terms of three years commencing
from 16 December 2011 for Ms. Ko Yuk Lan and Mr. Yao Ge and from
1 December 2015 for Mr. He Wenyi and thereafter may be terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing or payment in lieu of
such notice served by either party on the other. The service contracts are
automatically renewed upon expiration.

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board approved a new board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in August 2013. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members.
While all Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of the
Company's business. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills
and knowledge.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices, the Board
has established the following Board committees to oversee the particular
aspects of the Group's affairs. Each of these committees is consisted
wholly of or of a majority of independent non-executive Directors.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has been
established, in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules,
with written terms of reference in compliance with Code Provision C.3.3
of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Group and to provide advice and comments to the Board. The
members meet regularly with the external auditors and the Company’s
senior management for the review, supervision and discussion of the
Company'’s financial reporting and internal control procedures and ensure
that management has discharged its duty to have an effective internal
control system. The Audit Committee comprises three members,
namely Ms. Ko Yuk Lan, Mr. He Wenyi and Mr. Yao Ge, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. Ms. Ko Yuk Lan, who has
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting
matters, was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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Pursuant to the meetings of the Audit Committee on 21 March 2017 and
21 August 2017, the Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
and the six months ended 30 June 2017 respectively, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and the selection and
appointment of the external auditors. There had been no disagreement
between the Board and the Audit Committee during the financial year
ended 31 December 2017.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee"”) has been established, in compliance with Rules 3.25
and 3.26 of the Listing Rules, with written terms of reference in
compliance with Code Provision of B.1.2 of the CG Code. The principal
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to determine the
policies in relation to human resources management, to review the
compensation strategies, to determine the remuneration packages of
senior executives and managers, to approve the terms of the service
contract of the executive Directors, to assess the performance of the
executive Directors, to recommend and establish annual and long-term
performance criteria and targets as well as to review and supervise the
implementation of all executive compensation packages and employee
benefit plans. Pursuant to its terms of reference, the Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. The Board expects the Remuneration
Committee to exercise independent judgment and ensures that
executive Directors do not participate in the determination of their own
remuneration.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Remuneration Committee on 21 March
2017, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration
policy and structure relating to the Directors and senior management of
the Company.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) has been established, in compliance with Code Provision
A.5.1 of the CG Code, with written terms of reference in compliance with
Code Provision of A.5.2 of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, making recommendation to the Board on selection of candidates
for directorships, appointment, reappointment of Directors and Board
succession and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee will also give consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy when identifying suitably qualified candidates to become
members of the Board, and the Board will review the Board Diversity
Policy on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
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Pursuant to the meeting of the Nomination Committee on 21 March
2017, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and assessed independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.

Risk Management Committee

The risk management committee of the Company (the “Risk
Management Committee”) was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the relevant requirements of CG Code.
The principal responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee are
to monitor and review the Group's risk management system and risk
management policies and procedures and report to the Board of the
effectiveness of such system and procedures, and advise the Board on
the Group’s risk-related matters.

Pursuant to the meetings of the Risk Management Committee on 21
August 2017 and 1 December 2017, the Risk Management Committee
has reviewed the risk management system and risk management policies
and procedures.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company's corporate governance function is carried out by the Board
pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the Board in
compliance with Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which include (a)
to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board; (b) to review
and monitor the training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of the
Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’
ATTENDANCE

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of
the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee, Risk Management Committee and general meetings of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

ERREEHEXY

REZE2017F12831BILFER  SMNES
HEARRESRE  FifZET HFWES
€ REEES  EREEZEENEBNE
RAGHEA L FLESTOT

Risk
Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination Management General
Meeting  Committee ~ Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
RREE

EXEER FiZAE

FHERE REZAE ZRE BRXE

Executive Directors HIEE

Mr. Shi Hongliu (Chairman of the Board) TR (EER) 55  NATEA
Mr. Shi Hongyan MBI 55  NATER
Mr. Shi Zhixiong i e 55  NATER
Mr. Lui Wai Ming ER#LE 55 NATER
Independent non-executive Directors BV FFE/TEE

Ms. Ko Yuk Lan BEHLL 45 20
Mr. Yao Ge P 4f5 212
Mr. He Wenyi fXEEE 4f5 22

None of the meetings set out above was attended by any alternate
Director.
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TEERRSE

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT BESERR

The Directors have been informed of the requirement under Code EFRDEBAEEERTRIEA G SETAIE
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code regarding continuous professional NETEBRFRESEERNOBAT - BREAR
development. According to the records maintained by the Company, the RIEE ZR8  REZE2017F12831HLEF
Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the roles, B BEEEEIUTNIR  LEERAEE
functions and duties of a director of a listed company in compliance with ASRIEEBEEXERTENTHRE  £8
the new requirement of the Corporate Governance Code on continuous RETMRFTNEZNAE - B B

professional development during the year ended 31 December 2017:

Corporate Governance/
Updates on Laws,
Rules and Regulations

Accounting/Financial/
Management or Other
Professional Skills

LEETR EE - BRUR g O ME O EES
EREH Hth S RRE

Attend Attend

Read Seminars/ Read Seminars/

Name of Director materials  Briefings materials Briefings

HE HE

watE, WitE

ETEaE REEH fEEe FREEH GE: ]

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Shi Hongliu MRS v v v 4
(Chairman of the Board) (BFEL)

Mr. Shi Hongyan M HE S A 4 4 4 v/

Mr. Shi Zhixiong HEEHE S A 4 v v v

Mr. Lui Wai Ming EEHEE 4 4 4 4
Independent non-executive Directors — B U I#HiTEE

Ms. Ko Yuk Lan CES o v 4 % 4

Mr. Yao Ge k& St v v 4 4

Mr. He Wenyi fAIx&EEE v v v v
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EERHE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for securities transactions
by the Directors. Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors
and all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31
December 2017 which give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group at that date and of the Group’s financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended and are properly prepared on the going
concern basis in accordance with the applicable statutory requirements
and accounting standards.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company has appointed KPMG as the auditor of the Company.
The fees for the audit and review services provided by the auditors
to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to
RMB2,881,000.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company concerning their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company is set out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 87
to 94 of this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems of the Group. These systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. Internal control and risk
management systems are reviewed annually to ensure its continuous
effectiveness. The Company has established written policies and
procedures applicable to all operating units to ensure the effectiveness
of internal controls and risk management. The Group constantly allocates
resources to internal control and risk management systems, reasonably
(but not absolutely) guarantees that no material misstatement or loss
will be incurred, and manages (but not eliminates) the risks of failing to
achieve business objectives.

The Group has in place a risk management framework which has the
following five components: risk identification, risk assessment, risk
treatment, reporting and monitoring. This framework is subject to
continuous improvement and was in place throughout 2017 and up to
the date of this report. The key risks of the Group are summarized in the
paragraph headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” in the Management
Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 26 to 29 of this Annual Report.
The day-to-day operation is entrusted to the individual department, which
is accountable for its own conduct and performance, and is required to
strictly adhere to the policies set by the Board.

The Company has established internal audit function and regularly carries
out reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control in order to ensure
that they are able to meet and deal with the dynamic and ever changing
business environment.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review and
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's internal control
systems including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management. Such review and assessment covered the financial,
compliance and operational controls as well as risk management
mechanisms. The Board believes that the existing risk management and
internal control system is adequate and effective.

The Company has adopted an Inside Information Policy and provided
trainings to employees and directors related to inside information in order
to ensure the company is compliance with regulatory requirements.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

How Shareholders can convene an extraordinary general meeting
and putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more Shareholder holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the secretary of the Company by mail at Unit 1902, 19/
F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the secretary of the Company by mail at Unit 1902,
19/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong or by
email at ir@hosa.cn. The Company Secretary forwards communications
relating to matters within the Board's direct responsibilities to the Board
and communications relating to ordinary business matters, such as
suggestions, inquiries and customer complaints, to the chief executive
officer of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a clear, timely
and effective communication with the Shareholders and investors of
the Company. The Board also recognises that effective communication
with its investors is critical in establishing investor confidence and to
attract new investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to maintaining
a high degree of transparency to ensure the investors of the Company
and the Shareholders will receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and
timely information of the Group through the publication of annual reports,
interim reports, announcements and circulars. The Company also
publishes all corporate communications on the Company’s website at
www.hosa.cn. The Board maintains regular dialogues with institutional
investors and analysts from time to time to keep them informed of the
Group's strategy, operations, management and plans. The chairman of
the Board and members of various Board committees will attend the
annual general meeting of the Company to answer questions raised by
the Shareholders. The resolution of every important proposal will be
proposed at general meetings separately.

Voting at general meetings of the Company is conducted by way of poll in
accordance with the Listing Rules. The poll results will be announced at
general meetings and published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. In addition, the Company regularly meets with
institutional investors, financial analysts and financial media, and promptly
releases information related to any significant progress of the Company,
so as to promote the development of the Company through mutual and
efficient communications.
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REREESEEHRE

PROLOGUE

This is the environmental and social responsibility report of Hosa
International Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), which
is disclosed with reference to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide provided by Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Unless otherwise stated, this report covers data and relevant policies
on two major areas, namely environmental and social responsibility, of
the Group and its brands, production plants and offices for the period
commencing from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017 (collectively, the
"Year").

The Group, as a corporate citizen, understands that it shall take
responsibilities to each stakeholder, including staff, suppliers, clients,
investors, and natural environment. The Group has all along made
great efforts to perform its responsibilities, and it hopes to fulfill its
social responsibilities as a corporate citizen while carrying out business
development, by implementing policies in relation to the protection of
natural environment and the promotion of social development on one
hand and considering the interests of each stakeholder on the other
hand. The Group reviews itself constantly and would like to perform
better in areas of caring for stakeholders and environmental protection.
We are pleased to hear from you, please email us at ir@hosa.cn for any
suggestions to our policies on environmental and social responsibility.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND DATA

The Group attaches great importance to environmental protection, and
has implemented green and low-carbon production method, controlled
emission volume and waste, reduced consumption of resources and
proactively carried out environmental protection works through various
measures, which include improving waste recycling system, installing
modern production equipment with energy conservation, and encouraging
staff on energy conservation and waste reduction. The Group has also
stringently complied with the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Energy Conservation Law of the People's
Republic of China and other relevant regulations.
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Policies for Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction

The Group is always promoting energy conservation, and hopes to
decrease the cost of production while protecting the environment. The
Group's consumption of water derives from running water provided by
government approval organisation and no problem has been identified in
finding suitable water sources. During the Year, the Group implemented,
including but not limited to, the following policies on energy conservation:

1. Encouraging staff to save power and water, and fulfilling
environmental responsibility by individuals, such as requesting
staff to switch off power consuming equipment instantly during
off-hours, including lightings, air-conditioners and computers. A
detailed record of mileage and fuel consumption of official business
vehicles will be included in the performance assessment of relevant
departments for regular reporting and analysis;

2. Regularly checking water equipment, replacing and repairing
damaged water supply and emission systems in a timely manner,
and installing water-saving faucets;

3. Giving priority to use energy-saving equipment with low power
consumption, which includes installing energy-saving LED lighting
systems, allocating resources in installing heat pump water heaters
with energy conservation and environmental protection functions to
provide hot water for production purposes, etc.;

4. Using recycled paper packaging as far as possible for the packaging
design of products to minimise the use of plastic packaging; and

5. Planting different types of trees at its office buildings and
production bases to mitigate greenhouse effect and purify the
air on one hand, and adjust temperature in summer to reduce
dependence on the air-conditioning system on the other hand,
thereby lowering electricity consumption. As of 31 December
2017, the total number of trees in the Group’s office buildings and
production bases (trees with heights reaching at least 5 meters in
general) amounted to about 300.

The Group is actively seeking for more energy-saving equipment and
policies to reduce power consumption, electricity use, carbon emissions
and adoption of packaging materials, and will also continuously review
the effectiveness of the above policies.
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REREESEEHRE

Sewage and Waste Treatment Policy

The Group procured its fabric and dyeing and printing services from other
suppliers, and the production process of which only involves simple
processing operation, such as cutting and sewing, with limited impact
on environment, and only produces small amount of waste water and
harmless waste, such as wastepaper, packaging materials, fabrics and
others, rather than producing harmful waste gas directly. The Group has
a strict system to deal with waste water and solid waste, and we have
implemented, including but not limited to, the following policies for the
Year:

1. Conducting sample safety inspection on waste water produced in
the office and during the production and operation process. It will
suspend the emission and follow up the issue in a timely manner
when there is an excessive concentration of waste water;

2. Part of the daily washing water from employees in the production
bases will be directly used for toilet flushing, and part of the water
will be directly used for irrigation of flowers and grasses through
sewer connected to the greening zone of the bases;

3. Major wastes derived during the production process are fabrics and
papers. Such wastes will be subject to classification and sorting
instead of being discarded directly. Recyclable waste will be reused
after processing, whereas those cannot be recycled will be stored
and sold to waste buyers regularly; and

4. Reducing pollutants produced in the daily life of staff, such as
installing underground smog emission system at the canteen,
which helps reducing the effect of oil fumes produced in the
process of cooking on nearby residents and staff to the minimal
level, setting garbage classification bins inside the factories to
divide garbage into recyclable and non-recyclable, and providing
free food waste from the canteen to farmers for recycling, etc.

The Group will constantly review and examine the effectiveness of

the above policies and study other policies for effective disposal and
reduction in discharge of waste.
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RENTEEEHRE

Total energy consumption
BEREREE

— electricity

—&7

— gasoline

—

—diesel

i

— liquefied petroleum gas
—BRILEHE

Total water consumption

EFEKE

Total amount of packaging materials

BEMHNES
— plastics

— %R

— papers

—#R

2,227,571 KWh
2,227,571 T ELB
130,020 L
130,020
35,564 L
35,5647+

39 tons

39ME

76,526 tons
76,5261

49 tons
49ME
175 tons
175M8

Environmental Key Performance Indicators RBRBRENER
The following are the environmental key performance indicators assessed AT AARSERAFE AT BRERIR AN
by the Group for the Year: BIE
Amount of
Emissions/Usage Density
BHE mRE BE
Nitrogen oxide emissions 383 kg 295 g/per staff
RELBRE 383AST 2955 /BfIET
Sulfur dioxide emissions 14 kg 11g/per staff
—EUtEHESE 14T Mwx,/BET
Particulate emissions 21 kg 16 g/per staff
TR HER 2 AN 1657,/ B ET
Total greenhouse gas emissions 10,574 ton 8 ton/per staff
BERBGTRE 10,5741 8ME, B BT
Total harmless waste
BEEREYEE
— papers 9 tons 7 kg/per staff
—#R Ol TR/ BRET
— fabrics 60 tons 46 kg/per staff
— GO 46T/ BRIET

1,714 KWh/per staff
1.714FRE /B8
100 L/per staff per staff

1007 B ET
27 L/per staff
277 /B ET
30 kg/per staff
AT/ BIET
59 tons/per staff
BOME, B AT

38 kg/per staff
38R/ BET
134 kg/per staff
1342 /BB
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REREESEEHRE

EMPLOYEE AND WORKING ENVIRONMENT

Regarding employees as valuable assets, the Group has been striving to
create a safe and healthy working environment for employees over these
years, and to retain talents through improving the training system and
providing competitive remuneration and welfare.

There are three major principles for the Group to recruit and promote
staff, namely transparent positions, equal assessment and fair evaluation.
All applicants shall have an opportunity on equal assessment, and the
Group will conduct appraisal on such applicants based on interview
performance, academic background, work experience, etc.. The
same practice of equality without discrimination as well as the same
remuneration basis will be adopted for staff of a different gender and
race.

The Group pays attention to the work-life balance of staff. A number
of staff activities have been held for our staff during the Year, such as
choral competition, mid-autumn evening party, lunar new year dinner,
etc., creating a healthy working environment with delightful atmosphere,
which helps enhancing their sense of belonging to the Group. The Group
also sets standard working hours by taking into consideration the position
and department the employee belongs to, and prohibits its staff from
working excessive overtime for specified hours, unless permission is
given by the department head. All staff shall be entitled to a particular
number of days of annual leave no less than such as required by the laws
depending on their positions, departments and working years.

The Group has optimized mature system for remuneration management
with reference to remuneration rates in the industry so as to offer
our staff with equal and fair remuneration, thereby motivating them
effectively. Apart from basic wages, our staff will also receive a year-end
bonus as well as various welfare, such as holiday fee, marriage gifts, and
allowance for dispatched labour, according to working performance. In
addition, the Group strictly requires that all salaries for staff shall be paid
on time every month, and makes contribution to insurance and retirement
pension schemes for its staff of an amount no less than that as required
by local laws.

In order to prevent unreasonable dismissal, the Group has an optimized
system for resignation management, which stipulates that all dismissal
shall be proposed with sufficient ground. Department heads shall
communicate with the department of human resources and the
department will make suggestions on the dismissal based on the
situation of the employee concerned, which shall be subject to the final
approval of the management. The department of human resources shall
liaise with the employee concerned not only to get well-prepared for
the leaving of the employee but also ensuring equal treatment for such
employee and to relieve the negative emotion of the employee.
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Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working environment for
its staff, and stringently complies with relevant regulations on staff safety
and fire safety. During the Year, the Group implemented the following
measures to protect staff safety, including but not limited to:

° Promoting escape precaution and conducting drills against typhoon,
fire and earthquake hazards regularly;

° Operating a self-owned canteen and setting up a safety committee
to conduct routine inspection in respect of the hygiene and food
safety of the canteen to ensure food security;

° Providing regular trainings and lectures regarding safety issue for
employees;
o Organizing the measure of 24-hour security by arranging patrol duty

within areas with potential safety hazard regularly;

o Distributing protective equipment, including masks, head covers
and wired gloves, to staff that participate in fabric inspection,
warehousing, cutting and other production processes; and

° Installing fire facilities and emergency lighting systems in factories.
Employee Development and Training

In order to improve the knowledge and skills of staff, the Group has
established a sound training system and a training department specifically
responsible for training. In order for new recruits to understand the
profile, rules and regulations, corporate culture and the overall operation
of the enterprise, new recruits will receive different training courses
based on their positions and departments. The Group will also provide
regular training courses for all existing staff to consolidate and update
their knowledge and skills.

Other than imparting knowledge to the staff, training courses will
also include assessment and internship stages, and provide targeted
recommendations to staff based on the assessment results in order to
consolidate their future development. The Group also invests in resources
to develop an online training platform called Ho Xue Network College to
let all staff participate in training through mobile phones and computers at
any time, in anywhere, thereby greatly enhancing the convenience, and
the staff will be more interested in training through a lively and interesting
way of learning.
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In addition, the Group has established a “new staff training mentor
program”, and appointed senior staff as the mentor of new recruits. In
addition to providing guidance to the new staff on work methods and
skills, answering their problems encountered, the senior staff will also set
good examples to guide the new staff in respect of the corporate culture
so as to integrate the new staff into the Company as soon as possible.

Labor Standards

The Group strictly complies with the PRC and Hong Kong labor laws and
is prohibited from employing child labor, forced or compulsory labor. The
employment of all staff of the Group was conducted in accordance with
local labor laws during the Year.

Supply Chain Management

The Group is committed to protecting the environment and avoiding any
negative impact on the society. To ensure the health and safety of the
raw materials provided by the suppliers, the Group has established a
Supplier Management System and strictly abides by it.

The Group will conduct an on-site evaluation on suppliers in accordance
with the Supplier Management System and engage professional testing
organizations for the testing of products from suppliers. The Group
will review suppliers on the basis of, including but not limited to, the
followings:

o review whether the production procedures of suppliers are in
compliance with local laws and regulations, industry norms and
product safety requirements;

° review whether the suppliers have made every effort to protect the
environment and provide safe working environment for their staff;
and

° review whether the product quality, production equipment and
price, etc. of the suppliers, is in line with the requirements of the
Group.

In the event that the Group finds that the suppliers have violated the
laws, damaged the environment or failed to provide safe working
environment for the staff, the Group will give a warning or even cease
the partnership.
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Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to providing customers with quality products.
The Group has a legal department in place for registration and
management of our trademarks and intellectual property rights. If any
trademark infringement of the Group is found in the market, then the
legal department will require the other party to remove the infringement
products from the shelves and take legal actions to protect consumers.
The Group will also take the initiative to visit distributors to collect
feedbacks and recommendations on the quality of the products, prepare
written reports on the recommendations and feedbacks collected and
carry out discussion and improvement on the products.

To ensure that the products bought by consumers are healthy and
safe, the Group has a strict quality inspection system from selection of
suppliers, design and development to the production process to make
sure the products meet the safety standards issued by China General
Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine (BIZ
EEEEREKRZLHER), Standardisation Administration of the People’s
Republic of China (FEIBIRERE(LEEZEE) and other relevant
regulatory authorities. In the event that any defects or safety problems
are found in the products, the products will be recalled or remedied
according to the Return and Replacement Process of Defective Products.

The Group understands that consumers attach great importance
to personal privacy. Being a responsible social citizen, the Group is
committed to protecting the personal information of consumers. The
Group has formulated a comprehensive information security policy, and
has strictly required the staff to comply with the policies on collection,
usage, storage and disposal of consumers’ information.

Anti-corruption

The Group prohibits any form of corruption, bribery or fraud. The Group
has a clear Anti-corruption Code, and encourages the staff to report any
cases suspecting violation of the Anti-corruption Code. If anyone who has
been found to violate such code, he shall be subject to disciplinary action.
There are no any confirmed corruption incidents of the Group during the
Year.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group has been concerning about the needs of the community while
developing its business, and has actively developed resources to benefit
the community and the public to fulfill the responsibility of corporate
citizenship for years. During the year, the Group organized a number of
sports and health activities which were open to the public, sponsored
and supported hundreds of activities and tournaments such as National
Swimming Tournament, aerobics activities and sports forum.

1. “Hosa Cup” 2017 National Aerobics Championship

The event was organized by the Gymnastics Management Center
of General Administration of Sport of China and the Chinese
Aerobics Association, and was sponsored by the Administration
of Sport of Fujian, Datian County Municipal Government and Hosa
Group, thereby accomplishing the objectives of popularizing and
promoting artistic gymnastics to grassroots level, leading the
mass fitness craze, advocating the concept of national fitness. The
important section of the opening ceremony of “Hosa Cup” 2017
National Aerobics Championship successfully broke the honorary
Guinness World Records of “most people doing aerobics in front
of videos” with a valid score of 4,814 people. Under support of
the Gymnastics Management Center of General Administration of
Sport of China, the Group vigorously carried out the mass cultural
and sports activities such as cheerleading, aerobics, line dance,
square fitness dance and other activities, and called on the public
to achieve healthy life through sports, from which they can enjoy
good health and happiness.
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2. FINA titled/sponsored 2017 global tournaments 2. FINAE®R E§201725E2B%E

In order to promote the swimming and diving culture and the B K Rk L RERE FHH
development of sports industry, the Group sponsored FINA 10KM R ASEEESE = FY IR K
Marathon Swimming World Cup and Diving World Series for three (FINA)1OKM 55 H7 #1357 ok th 57 2 e i R
consecutive years. The first match of the Marathon Swimming BEKZDNE o BRI RBRFE
World Cup in the Year started in Argentina in February, and ended MBEEN2 AMIBREEuFHLEE - 5108
successfully in Hong Kong in October. Lasting for more than BEMTERE - BERSEZ A7
eight months with seven races, the event is held in a number of - ROBEEDMN - BUN - EMZE
countries in Asia, Europe and America, gathering the enthusiasm B @ SHEDIRFXEHENEGE
of the swimming enthusiasts over the world to jointly challenge the 15+ HEEKEBIRR o

limit of water sports.
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Serving as titled sponsor of Chinese swimming teams in
provincial level

The Group continued to offer titled sponsorship for Chinese
swimming teams during the Year, provided swimwear and
equipment to swimmers of Chinese provincial level swimming
teams, including: Beijing Water Cube Team, Liaoning Hosa team,
Shanghai Hosa team, Anhui Hosa team, Jiangxi Hosa team,
Heilongjiang Hosa team, Hunan Hosa Team, Shandong Hosa team,
Guangzhou Hosa team, Shaanxi Hosa team and Hubei Hosa team.
The Group is committed to facilitating the sound development of
national sports industry and contributing to construction of healthy
China.
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Serving as titled sponsor of Adolescents Swimming Contests

The Group has long been concerning about the healthy growth
of the youth, provides a platform to the youth for swimming and
training, and actively nurtures the healthy lifestyle of the youth,
hoping to pass the concept of health and happiness to more people
in order to contribute to the goal of healthy China. During the Year,
the Group sponsored a number of youth and student swimming
competitions, including the “Hosa Cup” Seventeenth Session of
Swimming Tournament for University Students, “Hosa Cup” 2017
Swimming Tournament for Colleges in Capital City, 2017 Hosa Cup
“Su Lu Yu Wan Jin” Children Swimming Championships, “Hosa
Cup” 2017 National Swimming Tournament for Sports Colleges,
"Hosa Cup” Adolescents Swimming Tournament in Shaanxi
Province.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design
and production of a wide range of mid-to-high end sportswear products,
including swimwear and fitness wear, which are sold under the
well-known Hosa and Water Cube brand.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, an indication of likely future developments
in the Group’s business and stakeholder relationship, can be found in
the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 26 to 29
of this annual report. In addition, details of the Group’s environmental
policies and compliance with laws and regulations can be found in the
Environmental and Social Responsibility Report set out on pages 56 to
68 of this annual report. The discussion and the report form part of this
report of the Directors.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December 2017
are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 95 to 175 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK3.9 cents (equivalent to approximately
RMB3.3 cents) per share was paid to our Shareholders during the year.
The Board recommended the distribution of a final dividend of HK2.2
cents (equivalent to approximately RMB1.85 cents) per share in cash
to Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2017, representing a
total payout of approximately RMB86.3 million, subject to approval by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting (“AGM") to be held on
Friday, 30 April 2018.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 176 to 180.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group are
set out in note 25 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Chapter
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately HK$39.8 million. Details of the distributable
reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2017 are set out in note 25
to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2017 amounted to RMB800,000 (2016: RMB nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2017 were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Hongliu (Chairman)

Mr. Shi Hongyan (Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Shi Zhixiong

Mr. Lui Wai Ming (Chief Financial Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan

Mr. Yao Ge

Mr. He Wenyi

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the existing independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

Each of the executive Directors on the Board had entered into a service
contract with the Company for terms of three years commencing from
16 December 2011 for Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi Hongyan, from
1 December 2015 for Mr. Shi Zhixiong and from 1 April 2016 for Mr.
Lui Wai Ming and thereafter may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing or payment in lieu of such notice served by
either party on the other. The service contracts are automatically renewed
upon expiration.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors on the Board had
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company with terms of
three years commencing from 16 December 2011 for Ms. Ko Yuk Lan
and Mr. Yao Ge, and from 1 December 2015 for Mr. He Wenyi and
thereafter may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by the respective independent non-executive Director on
the Company, and by immediate notice in writing served by the Company
on the respective independent non-executive Director.
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In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Shi Zhixiong , Mr. He
Wenyi and Ms. Ko Yuk Lan will retire from the Board by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Shi Zhixiong and Mr. He Weyi
are eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Changes in Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, during the period from 21
August 2017 (the date of the company’s 2017 interim report) to 21 March
2018 (the date of the company’s 2017 annual report), the changes in
directors’ information are as follows:

- as at 27 October 2017, Mr. Lui Wai Ming was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Ernest Borel Holdings
Limited (@ company listed on the main board of Hong Kong, stock
code: 1856).

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 37 to 44 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed herein, for the year ended 31 December 2017,
none of the Directors had any direct or indirect material interest in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries and subsidiaries
of its holding company was a party and remained subsisting at the end of
the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company had the following interests or short positions in the shares (the
"Shares"), underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its -
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO, including interests and short positions which the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company are taken and deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO, or which are required to be and are
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code:
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are beneficially owned as to 49.85% by Mr. Shi Hongliu. Mr. Shi Hongliu is
therefore deemed to be interested in the aggregate of 829,884,859 Shares
held by Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited and Well Born Industrial Group

Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which had been recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which had been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

At no time was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) to hold any interest or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 23 November 2011 for the purpose of giving certain eligible
persons an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and
motivating them to optimise their future performance and efficiency
to the Group and/or rewarding them for their past contributions, and
attracting and retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going relationships
with, such eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth or
success of the Group.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue as at the Listing Date, i.e. 1,600,000,000 Shares. The maximum
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme to any one person (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time to time.
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Report of the Directors

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the
Board and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant. There is
no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay
the Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on or before 28 days
after the offer date. The exercise price of the options is determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever is
the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of a Share;

(b)  the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet on the date of offer; and

(c) the average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the Listing Date, after which no further options will be granted
or offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain
in force and effect in all other respects. All options granted prior to the
termination of the Share Option Scheme and not then exercised shall
continue to be valid and exercisable subject to and in accordance with the
Share Option Scheme.
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ESEHE

Details of the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme as

R2017F12A318  IRIEEBRETEIREN

at 31 December 2017 are as follows: BIRENFEOT
Exercised As at
Asat1January  Granted during during 31 December
Name of director 2017 the period the period 2017 Exercise price Date of grant  Exercise period
R2017%
12A318
1.3 R2017%1R1H B BT RFR{TE BRTER il fTER
Mr. Lui Wai Ming HK$2.37 T April 2016 (Notes (i) and fi)
ER#RE 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 237 201654A18 (et R
Total:
&it: 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
Notes: Hisz -

(i) The closing price immediately before the date on which the options were i)

granted on 1 April 2016 was HK$2.20.

(i) Details of exercise period of the share options granted to Mr. Lui Wai Ming (i)

are as follows:

Exercise period

TR

ZER2016F4 A1 B ELERES B HE
A2.2087T ©

ETREHEENBRBITERFBENT

Percentage of exercisable share options

APTEERENES L

1 April 2018 to 31 March 2021
2018F4A1HZE2021463H31H

1 April 2019 to 31 March 2021
20194A1H£E202143A31H

1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021
20204 A1HZE202143H31H

30% of the total number of share options granted

EREERELEN30%

30% of the total number of share options granted
BRI E B30 %

40% of the total number of share options granted

ERBRELEI40%

The total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 158,500,000, representing approximately 9.5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital as at the date of this annual report.

No share options granted under the Share Option Scheme were lapsed,

exercised or cancelled for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 23 to the

financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in “Share Option Schemes"” above, at no time during
the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director of the
Company or their respective spouses or minor children, or were such
rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debt securities (including debentures) of the Company or any other
body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, as
at 31 December 2017, the persons or corporations (other than Director
or chief executive of the Company) who had interest or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were required to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of Shareholders

Capacity/Nature of Interest

EETWME

EERERGREASTHRHE

B £ RERERT 8 P IREE S - RO
BRERNTARRRAREENES - FES

B BRARFH TR LEN - FEARE
AREEBEMD R ESFMERMNE - MRFE

TREEMZSERN « ARF - BERArsE
ERMEARBET LA - Bl A RE

EETHEBALRR ﬂi&ﬂﬁﬁﬂ}f/\l SEA
I RMEBEF(BIEER ) MERF=

FERREEROREAMKOHER
k8

MARREMNESSESTHABRMA - R
20175128318 » U FATECEE (I IEARRA
RBEEHREITHRAR)RAR RN KiEE
B - EEREESRBEEOIEXVESE
2&3"*59’]117&;/@1&&%%2!& A HY R R O
C BB HIAMRIRE S K EI& 0553361548
;ﬂ‘gmﬁpaﬂﬂﬁqm& SSOAR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Number of Shares the Company

XA TR ER

KRB S #aug Biz&H i OT=R5 4

Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited" Beneficial interests 710,076,859 42.59%
(Long position)

EHREERERA EniEn (5F2)

Well Born Industrial Group Limited” Beneficial interests 119,808,000 7.19%
(Long position)

EHEEEEBRAEY EmiEm (B RE)

Mr. Fang Chengyu Beneficial interests 103,026,000 6.18%
(Long position)

TR A Emigm (#FE)

Notes: et -

(1) Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi Hongyan, executive Directors, are two of the (1) BITESHRERTCEREERELEREBIERE

directors of Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited and Well Born Industrial
Group Limited.
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ESEHE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company are not aware of any other person
or corporation having an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would require to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's
listed securities.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Haosha Industry, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company,
has entered into certain transactions with Haosha Garments and
Quanzhou Haosha Fitness Centre Co., Ltd. “Haosha Fitness Centre”.

CONNECTED PERSON

Haosha Garments is a limited liability company established in the PRC
on 24 October 1996, and is owned as to 75% by Mr. Shi Hongliu and
25% by Mr. Shi Hongyan, respectively. Mr. Shi Hongliu is an executive
Director and is entitled to exercise more than 30% of the voting power at
general meetings of Haosha Garments. Accordingly, Haosha Garments is
an associate of Mr. Shi Hongliu under Rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules and
therefore a connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.07 of the
Listing Rules.

Haosha Fitness Centre is a limited liability company established under the
laws of the PRC on 18 December 2013 and is owned as to 60% by Mr.
Shi Hongliu and 40% by Mr. Shi Hongyan, respectively. Mr. Shi Hongliu
and Mr. Shi Hongyan are executive Directors and are entitled to exercise
more than 30% of the voting power at general meetings of Haosha
Fitness Centre. Accordingly, Haosha Fitness Centre is an associate of Mr.
Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi Hongyan under Rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules
and therefore a connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.07 of
the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

The continuing connected transactions

(a)

Procurement agreement with Haosha Garments

On 7 June 2011, Haosha Industry, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company, entered into a procurement agreement
with Haosha Garments, whereby Haosha Garments agreed to
supply its fabric products to Haosha Industry from time to time for
Haosha Industry to manufacture Hosa branded indoor sportswear
products. The procurement agreement is for a term from 1 January
2011 to 31 December 2013 renewable for a further three years at
the option of Haosha Industry subject to compliance with applicable
requirements of the Listing Rules. Haosha Industry has the right to
terminate the procurement agreement at any time before expiration
subject to compliance with the Listing Rules.

In order to continue the relevant transactions with Haosha
Garments, Haosha Industry entered into a procurement agreement
with Haosha Garments on 19 December 2013. A new procurement
agreement (“New Procurement Agreement”) was entered
between Haosha Industry and Haosha Garments on 22 November
2016, whereby Haosha Industry agreed to purchase from Haosha
Garments, and Haosha Garments agreed to sell to Haosha
Industry, fabric products from time to time. The New Procurement
Agreement is for a term of three years, from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2019, and is renewable for another three year at the
option of Haosha Industry subject to compliance with applicable
requirements of Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions
under the New Procurement Agreement for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2019 are RMB9 million, RMB12 million and
RMB15 million.

EETWME

BEREXS

(a) BEEWBKEIIFBRE
R2011E6 878 @« AR RKME 2 A
BARESEHEEE uiﬁﬂi%ﬁm
E% ’ HEJHZ D//J\%Kﬂ TH‘IW D// E
¥MEHAERER UHEDPEEAE

EDREBENESRAER A o HiE
W FEEH201141 51 HEE2013 4
1283181 ORGP EXRERSE
BoF o EXNARES ETRANERR
TE o AP EEB RN EMmATBER K LR
i HAMALIMRAGAE -

REEBRE DB REITHBRZ S
20134128198 - /m/gﬁ/um¢i
KA — B - &HR2016F11 A4
228 - MESEHEEIEDBIXNET —DFT
REH=Z(CEEmE]) - Bt - &0
ﬁ%ﬂ TETF—J/D//;EXZY%RE%&/D//%
KRBT REDEXLERMHER -
FEEREAH=F - B2017F1A1H
Z2019F12A31HIE » WA REDE
RERBSTEE=F  WABT LR
wzzmﬁi REE2019F12 A31
“RAFESTF  FHEREHZENZ
%Zigt@ﬁAﬁwgﬁéi A

RE1N2BETLMAREKIGHEETT

HOSA International Limited i& VBB RE AR

79




80

Report of the Directors

ESEHE

(b)

Haosha Garments has been a fabric products provider of the
Group and the Group expects itself to continue procuring fabric
products from Haosha Garments in view of their long-term
business relationship, which enables Haosha Garments to respond
to the order requests of the Group in a more prompt and accurate
manner compared with other independent suppliers of similar
products available in the market, as well as the proximity between
Haosha Garments and Haosha Industry, which helps reduce the
transportation costs. The prices at which the Group procures the
fabric products from Haosha Garments are based on terms that are
comparable to those available from independent suppliers of similar
products, on arm’s length negotiation and on normal commercial
terms.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group procured fabric
products of RMB7.5 million from Haosha Garments to manufacture
Hosa branded indoor sportswear products and the amount of
procurement fees paid/payable to Haosha Garments was within the
approved annual cap of RMB9 million (excluding value added tax).

Processing Agreement with Haosha Garments

In light of the fact that Haosha Industry lacks the in-house facilities
for dyeing and printing its procured fabric products, Haosha
Industry entered into a processing agreement with Haosha
Garments on 7 June 2011, pursuant to which Haosha Garments
agreed to provide dyeing and printing services to Haosha Industry
from time to time on commercial terms. The processing agreement
is for a term from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013 renewable
for a further period of three years at the option of Haosha Industry
subject to compliance with applicable requirements of the Listing
Rules. Haosha Industry has the right to terminate the processing
agreement at any time before expiration subject to compliance with
the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

In order to continue the relevant transactions with Haosha
Garments, Haosha Industry entered into a processing agreement
with Haosha Garments on 19 December 2013. A new processing
agreement (“New Processing Agreement”) was entered between
Haosha Industry and Haosha Garments on 22 November 2016,
whereby Haosha Industry agreed to purchase from Haosha
Garments, and Haosha Garments agreed to supply to Haosha
Industry, dyeing and printing services from time to time. The New
Processing Agreement is for a term of three years, from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2019, and is renewable for another three
years at the option of Haosha Industry subject to compliance with
applicable requirements of Listing Rules. The annual caps for the
transactions under the New Processing Agreement for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2019 are RMB66 million, RMB72
million and RMB80 million, as approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting
held on 29 December 2016. Further details of such transaction are
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 22 November
2016 and the circular of the Company dated 2 December 2016.

Haosha Garments has been the processing service provider of the
Group and the Group expects itself to continue using processing
services provided by Haosha Garments in view of their long-term
business relationship, which enables Haosha Garments to respond
to the order requests of the Group in a more prompt and accurate
manner compared with other independent suppliers of similar
services available in the market, as well as the proximity between
Haosha Garments and Haosha Industry, which helps reduce
the transportation costs. The prices at which Haosha Garments
provides processing services to the Group are based on terms that
are comparable to those offered by independent suppliers of similar
services, on arm'’s length negotiation and on normal commercial
terms.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group incurred
RMB56.4 million for the processing services provided by Haosha
Garments and the amount of processing fees paid/payable to
Haosha Garments was within the approved annual cap of RMB66
million (excluding value added tax).
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(c)

Sales Agreement with Haosha Fitness Centre

On 22 November 2016, Haosha Industry entered into a sales
agreement with Haosha Fitness Centre (“Sales Agreement”),
whereby Haosha Fitness Centre agreed to purchase from Haosha
Industry, and Haosha Industry agreed to supply to Haosha Fitness
Centre, health products from time to time. The procurement
agreement is for a term from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2019 renewable for a further period of three years at the option
of Haosha Industry subject to compliance with applicable
requirements of the Listing Rules. Haosha Industry has the right to
terminate the Sales Agreement at any time before the expiration
subject to compliance with the Listing Rules.

The annual caps for the transactions under the Sales Agreement
for each of the three years ending 31 December 2019 are RMB20
million, RMB30 million and RMB50 million.

Haosha Fitness Centre is a leading fitness centre chain and has 70
fitness centres all over the PRC’s major cities, which is a sizable
distribution channel. The Sales Agreement enables the Group to
make use of the distribution channel to develop the health product
market. The price and terms of the individual orders in respect of
the Sales Agreement will be conducted on normal commercial
terms and negotiated on an arm’s length basis, on similar basis
with other independent third party customers, and shall be on
terms which are no less favourable to the Group than those
provided to independent third party customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group sold health
products of RMB7.9 million to Haosha Fitness Centre. The sales
amount was within the approved annual cap of RMB20 million
(excluding value added tax).

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above-
mentioned continuing connected transactions between the Group and
Haosha Garments, and confirmed that such transactions were entered

into:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms and on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available from independent third parties; and

in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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Report of the Directors

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s
auditors have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange. The auditors’ letter confirms that, in
respect of the above-mentioned continuing connected transactions:

a. nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company's board of
directors.

b. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Group.

c. nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions.

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of the above-mentioned
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to the
auditors’ attention that causes the auditors to believe that the
above-mentioned continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTIES

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules in respect of the above continuing connected transactions. Save as
disclosed, significant related party transactions which do not constitute
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules in the year are disclosed in Note 29 of the financial
statements prepared under the International Financial Reporting
Standards.
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance had been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of his/its compliance with the non-compete undertakings provided to
the Company under the Deed of Non-Competition (as defined in the
Prospectus). The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under
the Deed of Non-Competition have been complied with by the controlling
shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business, apart from
the Group's business, that competes or competed or is or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to and including
the date of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contacts concerning the management and administration of the whole

or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands where the Company
is incorporated applicable to the Company.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's emolument policies are based on the merit, qualifications
and competence of individual employees and are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee periodically.
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Report of the Directors

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and are decided by the Board, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted two share option schemes to motivate and
reward its Directors and eligible employees. Details of these schemes
are set out in the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes"” above and
note 23 to the financial statements.

PENSION SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution mandatory provident fund
scheme (the "MPF Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for eligible employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated income statements as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in China are
required to participate in defined contribution central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal government. The subsidiaries of the
Group are required to contribute certain percentages of its payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated income statements as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of pension
benefits beyond the annual contributions described above.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five largest
customers accounted for 12.9% (2016: 15.0%) and 50.3% (2016: 51.9%),
respectively, of the Group's total revenue.
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Report of the Directors

ESEHE

During the year, aggregate purchases from the Group's largest and five FAMAEBEFANAAEEENRERZE D

largest suppliers accounted for 11.7% (2016: 18.8%) and 46.8% (2016: BME RS B A FE R R AR FKIERE11.7% (2016
43.1%), respectively, of the Group's total purchases from suppliers. F :18.8%)}46.8% (20165 : 43.1%) °

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2017, did a Director, his/ REZE2017F 128318 It FE(TAERE - #
her associate(s) or a Shareholder, which to the knowledge of the Director EEE  HEMB ASMESMAEE ARG
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital, have an interest in AHBiBs% MR RAAERE M ARTFE Kt

any other of the Group's five largest customers and suppliers. EEER AR — S ER

AUDITORS BB

KPMG will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. EEHSTMEBMBRT  HEFEERE
A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company will be B o MR RNE EiIRE —TBARRE - M
proposed at the AGM. BEREE AN R RIZEAD

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS BHFRHEES

The Articles provides that every Director is entitled to be indemnified MAFRTE - BUEF AR EEHRNRITHR
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions, costs, TSR IEAI TRV S M Al BERPTEH « B2 1E
losses and damages which he/she may sustain by reason of any act B TMEAMBHE BRI ETTE - K
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/her duty, A BRKIBER AN EEHESEE -

or supposed duty, in his/her office, provided that the indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to him/her.

The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance AREERFANEEES KT ERE - UEE
coverage on directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken against EEN X RN EEYE MR AER

Directors arising out of corporate activities throughout the year. B ©
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT EBHEMLORISKRE

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within REARNGMENARAERRRESHAN - R
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report, the REFRBEE - RABRREZE2017F12831H
Company has maintained the prescribed public float of not less than 25% IFEFEE—BH#F EMRAMMEE NP RAAF]
of the Company'’s issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules for BEITRMN25%MIEE ARIERE -

the year ended 31 December 2017.

BANK LOANS BMITHER

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has outstanding bank loans of 20179128318 - AEEZRITERE

RMB377,135,000 (2016: RMB320,632,000), which carried interest rate of A ANRK377,135,0007T(20164F « AR

2% — 7% (2016: 1% — 5%). The amount of interest capitalised during the 320,632,000) * EFEE2%ET7% (2016 :

year ended 31 December 2017 was nil. 1%%E5%) - HZE2017F12A31BILFED
BEREWFNESEAT -

On behalf of the Board

Shi Hongliu REREFE
Chairman i
EER

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018
&% 20183 H21H
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Hosa International Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hosa
International Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
set out on pages 95 to 175, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“"HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition: Distributor arrangements

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policy 1(s) on page 121 and page 115.

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

The Key Audit Matter

Revenue mainly comprises sales Our audit procedures to assess

of swimwear and fitness wear to the recognition of revenue from

distributors. distributor arrangements included
the following:

MREFHER

PR T FRERERMNBEAE - HAH
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The Group enters into a framework e

distribution agreement with each
distributor on a biennial basis and,
according to the terms of the
distribution agreements, products
are manufactured based on
purchase orders received and then
delivered to the location designated
by the distributor, at which point
the risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods are considered to have
been transferred to the distributor
and revenue is recognised.

During trade fairs held by the Group
during the year, the distributors
reach general purchase agreements
with the Group, which indicate the
amounts and quantity of goods to
be ordered in the coming months.
Adjustments to orders are allowed
to be placed within the agreed time
period.
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inspecting the framework
distribution agreements with
distributors, on a sample basis,
to understand the terms of the
sale transactions, including the
terms of delivery and any sales
return arrangements, to assess
the Group's revenue recognition
criteria with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

comparing, on a sample basis,
the orders in the general
purchase agreements reached
during the trade fairs, with the
revenue from the corresponding
distributors as recorded by the
Group during the year, and
understanding the reasons for
any material differences by
inquiring sales personnel and
inspecting relevant underlying
documentation for the order
adjustments;
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We identified the recognition e
of revenue from distributor
arrangements as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the
key performance indicators of the
Group and therefore there is an
inherent risk of manipulation of the
timing of recognition of revenue
by management to meet specific
targets or expectations.

Independent Auditor’s Report
v RVR R (lE sy

assessing, on a sample basis,
whether specific revenue
transactions around the financial
year end had been recognised
in the appropriate financial
period on the basis of the
terms of sale as set out in the
distribution agreements by
comparing the details in the
relevant sales invoices with
acceptance documents signed
by the distributors;

identifying sales returns from
the sales ledger after the year
end and inspecting relevant
underlying documentation
to assess if the related
adjustments to revenue had
been accounted for in the
appropriate financial period; and

selecting a sample of sales
journals during the reporting
period that met certain risk-
based criteria and comparing
details of journals, with
the relevant underlying
documentation.
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Recoverability of trade receivables

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies 1(j)(i) on page 137 and page 107.

The Key Audit Matter

At 31 December 2017, the Group's
gross trade receivables totalled
RMB475 million, against which
provision of RMB0.69 million for
doubtful debts was recorded.

Management assesses the need
for provisions for doubtful debts
based of the expected credit losses
to be incurred, which is estimated
by taking into account the ageing
of overdue balances, repayment
history of the Group’s individual
distributors and current market and
distributor-specific conditions, all of
which involve a significant degree
of management judgement.

We identified assessing the
recoverability of trade receivables as
a key audit matter because of the
inherent uncertainty in assessing if
trade receivables will be recovered
in full and because current market
conditions are unpredictable and
the assessment of the provisions
for doubtful debts requires the
exercise of significant management
judgement.
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How the matter was addressed
in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
recoverability of trade receivables
included the following:

e obtaining an understanding
of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of management'’s
key internal controls relating to
credit control, debt collection
and making provisions for
doubtful debts;

e assessing whether items were
correctly categorised in the
trade receivables ageing report
by comparing a sample of
individual items with underlying
sales invoices;
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Independent Auditor’s Report

obtaining an understanding of
the basis of management’s
judgements about the
recoverability of individual
material and all overdue trade
receivable balances with
reference to the ageing of
overdue balances and historical
and post year end payment
records;

assessing the historical
accuracy of the estimates
made by management for the
provisions for doubtful debts
by comparing the provisions
made by management as at 31
December 2016 with the actual
new provisions and recoveries
in respect of trade receivables
as at 31 December 2016 during
the current year; and

inspecting, on a sample basis,
cash receipts from distributors
subsequent to the financial year
end relating to trade receivable
balances at 31 December 2017.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Tsang Fai.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

atERERAEMmGES RER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017412A31H I FZF
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B85 + U K EEZIR)

2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HisE ARETTT ARBTFT
Revenue BEH 8 1,198,769 1,103,540
Cost of sales SHEE AR 3 (698,656) (536,213)
Gross profit EH 500,113 567,327
Other revenue HABUA 4 41,328 57,850
Other net (loss)/income Hah#H(E8) WA 4 (3,681) 1,193
Selling and distribution expenses 4 I AC SR AR (119,736) (185,689)
Administrative and other operating TR R E A& M
expenses (101,847) (109,198)
Profit from operations BENA 316,177 331,483
Finance costs ZUE AN 5(a) (23,811) (4,307)
Profit before taxation FRIRETFIRE 5 292,366 327,176
Income tax FR1SH 6 (45,842) (58,339)
Profit for the year attributable to equity AFEREREGEETE
shareholders of the Company 246,524 268,837
Other comprehensive income for FEHMFSKRE
the year
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently ﬂﬁ?ﬁ@ﬁ?ﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ*
to profit or loss: =
Exchange differences on translation of HE le@f“?l\W%
financial statements of operations NI R e
outside the mainland China MER Z2 18,579 (14,319)
Total comprehensive income for the year &2 F{E 2B RE(GFE
attributable to equity shareholders of Hekals
the Company 265,103 254,518
Earnings per share (RMB) BSEREF(AEET)
— Basic 7 9 0.15 0.16
— Diluted — 8 0.15 0.16

FE99E 175 WP G A AR 15 3R 3R 1) — &6
Al RPN T’F“*H’iﬁﬁrf'ﬁ'ﬁﬁg{ﬁﬂxg o)
EACE N GEEZI)

The notes on pages 99 to 175 form part of these financial statements.
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 25(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BRI AR R

As at 31 December 2017 RKR2017F12H31H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #58H5) + H9UN R BEZR)

2017 2016
Note RMB’000 R MB ‘000
g3 AR¥TFTT AERBFT
Non-current assets ERBHEIE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB kB 10 93,485 85,299
Lease prepayments EES 11 16,904 17,319
Intangible assets E|REE 12 1,306 513
Interest in an associate REERFIRE 14 100,000 =
Loan to an associate EWTHENRER 15 100,000 =
Deferred tax assets FRIEF IR E B 24(b) 687 3,021
Total non-current assets FERBFERE 312,382 106,152
Current assets e B o
Inventories BE 16 288,279 220,255
Trade and other receivables B 5 I B At e MR 17 572,426 421,547
Pledged deposits BERFR 18 132,917 255,959
Fixed deposits held at banks with maturity  EI|HA B B8 =& A 895R 17 &
over three months T 19(a) 1,370,673 1,364,266
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEY 19(a) 351,916 88,796
Total current assets mENEERE 2,716,211 2,350,823
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEN TR 20 251,762 236,028
Bank loans RITER 21 377,135 320,632
Notes payable g 22 321,112 =
Current taxation BNERRL I8 24(a) 38,685 33,346
Total current liabilities mEAEEE 988,694 590,006
Net current assets REEERE 1,727,517 1,760,817
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTDHAMGR 2,039,899 1,866,969
Non-current liability EREAE
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEEE 24(b) 7,341 10,782
Total non-current liability FERBAFRE 7,341 10,782
Net assets BESHE 2,032,558 1,856,187
Capital and reserves BE R GER
Share capital ELZN 25(c) 13,567 13,567
Reserves (0] 25(d) 2,018,991 1,842,620
Total equity Eawa 2,032,558 1,856,187

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 March HEE2A2018F3 A21 B#tb/f K 7T o

2018.
Shi Hongliu Shi Hongyan
8 4 IS HE
Director Director
2 EZE
The notes on pages 99 to 175 form part of these financial statements. F£99E 175 H MM E A AN B IS TR R A9 — 3P
8
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BOHEREFR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ22017F12A31H 1 F/Z
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B85 + U K EEZIR)

Capital Share-hased
Share Share  redemption Capital Statutory Exchange Other  compensation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
73 L3
kx kinaR TRE G fe3 ] EERR EREH AfERE  ORREE GENR it
(note 250c)) (note 261a)) noteZbiell))  note 25(chlil)  (note 25(c)fii}) (ot 26(elliv)) (note 25(alfv))  (note 25iciivi)
(Hizzse)  (Hizs) ) (o) (Ezsn)  (E2sd) (B2 (FE2s)
Note RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
Wit ANEEFT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFr AREFT AREFr ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFr
Balance at 1 January 2016 12016518 1RRKE 13,494 21627 29 60 69,572 (8,763) 91132 5,509 1,518,102 1,710,762
Changes in equity for 2016: 2016 R8E :
Proft for the year EERH = . . = - - - - 268,837 268,837
Other comprehensive income ~ EfifzA K& - - - - - (14,319) - - - (14,319)
Total comprehensive income A KEEE - - - - - (14319 - - 268,837 254,518
Fquity-setled sharebased ~ MEREE ZRAXH
payments 25(d)vi - - - = - - - (800) = (800)
Sharesissued onexercise  {1{FERIRIEZEET
of share options i3 25(c) 73 13764 - - - - - 4,530) - 9307
Dividends approved in respect  SEAFRHEAIRE
of current year 2500) - 21,627) - - - - - - (95,973) 117,600)
Balance at 31 December  #2016%12A31H
2016 it 13,567 13,764 29 60 69,572 (23,082) 91,132 179 1,690,966 1,856,187
Balance at 1 January 2017 R2017E1B1RAMER 13,567 13,764 29 60 69,572 (23,082) 91,132 179 1,690,966 1,856,187
Changes in equity for 2017 20175 REH :
Profit for the year FRRH - - - - - - - - 246524 246,524
Other comprehensive income ~ EtiAKE - - - - - 18579 - - - 18579
Total comprehensive income SRS - - - - - 18579 - - 24652 265,103
Equity-setfled sharebased  MEREEZRAOXNA
payments 25(d)(vi) - - - - - - - 231 - 21
Dividends approved in respect  SUAEREHAEHIRE.
of current year 250) - (13,764) - - - - - - (75,199) (88,963)
Balance at 31 December 120176128318
2017 s 13,567 - 29 60 69,572 (4,503) 91,132 40 1,862,291 2,032,558

The notes on pages 99 to 175 form part of these financial statements.

N

)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
PAN A —

SFIRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 2201712431 H I F/Z

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #58H5) + H9UN R BEZR)

2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
g3 ARETTT ARETFT
Operating activities e TE
Cash generated from operations LRSS 19(b) 129,443 116,534
Income tax paid BFTSH (41,610) (34,816)
Net cash generated from operating BEITDMERLRE
activities 87,833 81,718
Investing activities BEET
Payments for purchase of property, plant ~ BEEY¥ - BE RRERNRK
and equipment (11,527) (8,097)
Payments for purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE MK (589) (149)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant ~ H&EWE « BER
and equipment RABFTS 5RIE 61 =
Interest received B HERFIE 38,561 41,519
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits BERFZORL, (3 h0) 123,042 (81,043)
Placement of time deposits with original FARZFABBE=EA 2
maturity over three months T BATF 3K (514,407) (1,364,266)
Maturity of time deposits with original REIEEBE=EA 2
maturity over three months TEHR 17 sk B A= 508,000 1,281,500
Payment for investment in an associate B E N RER (100,000) =
Loan to an associate BEWTHERTER (100,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities BREFHRARERE (56,859) (130,536)
Financing activities AT
Proceeds from bank loans RITEFRPTSIE 348,977 310,489
Repayments of bank loans IRITERER (279,497) (132,076)
Proceeds from loans from immediate HEIERRERE RS 508
controlling party 5,771 52,396
Repayments of loans from immediate BRI EFER
controlling party (56,473) -
Proceeds from shares issued under share  RiEEEA T 21251 TAL (D
option scheme FrfS 503 - 9,307
Net proceeds from notes issued BOEBFREE 22 323,823 -
Interest paid EATHE (22,119) (4,323)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of ERARRARERRREARE
the Company (88,336) (119,179)
Net cash generated from financing METEBREHRBHE
activities 232,146 116,614
Net increase in cash and cash BeRASEEMEMBE
equivalents 263,120 67,796
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January B1A1BHHRERRALEZED 88,796 21,000
Cash and cash equivalents BM12A3MHRER
at 31 December HReEEY 19(a) 351,916 88,796
The notes on pages 99 to 175 form part of these financial statements. F99F 175 H M 1B AN B 5 i = /9 — =B

7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
2 September 2010. The shares of the Company have been
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange"”) since 16 December
2011.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
("IASs") and Interpretations issued by International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and its associate.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"). These consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") as the functional
currency of the Group's operating subsidiaries is RMB. These
consolidated financial statements presented in RMB have
been rounded to the nearest thousand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting standards

The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSs

that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group:

° Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

o Amendments to IAS 7, Disclosure initiative

° Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes — Recognition of
deferred tax assets for unrealised losses
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting standards (Continued)

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Group's results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented. However,
additional disclosure has been included in note 19(c) to
satisfy the new disclosure requirements introduced by the
amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure
initiative, which require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The
Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-Group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-Group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-Group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company's statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(j)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee's identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change
in the Group's share of the investee's net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes 1 (j)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In the Company’s consolidated statement of financial
position, investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(j)).

2017 ANNUAL REPORT FE#HE

EXEHBR ()

(e)

BRELT

BERNRREARERADAEEH
HEHEE (A28 gmgs
RARR)BEATEN - (BEES
R ARSI -

YL DR NI ERERSAES
G R RER P AR o RHERA -
BRIRERAEITIATE - W%
PR &2 B R (L 4% & B AL Al R
FEAERKER AR BEBGBIR
B AN (A0 ) B AT FR H BE 0 i
TR - Hig - ZRERWER
REBMH MR E RN REEFE
VB AT (A BRI B S B HY R E
BB (R HF1()FAE - TWBa
W ARANESEE  NEBREL
WIRE R A EB BT R 2
BERAMREBERAMfIESE
NEER  MASEEELWEEER
MR R MR E MRS
WERApHEZ R Eth 2wk
FRAMER ©

11 74 5 [ B 1 5 1R 7 5B L O B
NERER @ BIARE N
BMET  WEKRILFERE—FE
1B - ME AN SR B B AR E SR E
BEEIRRWKERRELN
Ko BUME  AEEER SR
R MRENREEEREES L
BRASEREE RRERERN
—EDANEE KR -

AEBEAEBENRERSESE
MABERIBRUAEEERIRE
T RE S TIAKS - EEA
EERBIEEEEELIRER
Sh - ERBRT  RFERERE
1BENRT PMBEE R HERR ©

IMREHE N AR ER RS &
EENRE  RZTRA - RED
BETEEMITE - AR RE
IR EAZE

EARRINE G B KRS -
A2 N R IR E AR SRR E
BRIIIR(RHMEE)) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Property, plant and equipment

Iltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(j)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(u)).

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

° Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 20
years after the date of completion.

° Plant and machinery 5-10 years
° Motor vehicles 2 — 4 years
° Furniture fixtures and equipment 3 -5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g)

(h)

(i)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent software and are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(j)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimate useful lives. Software are amortised from
the date they are available for use over a period of three
years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent cost of land use rights paid
to the People's Republic of China (“PRC") governmental
authorities. Land use rights are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note
1(j))). Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the respective periods of the rights.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease terms, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CXb e E e
S tH <M
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXEHEGE)
(CONTINUED)

() Impairment of assets () BEERE
(i)  Impairment of investments in equity securities and (i) BRIEEFREREBESRAM

other receivables BN 7kt (B

Investments in equity securities and other current HTH DARK AN sk B SRR AR B AR

and non-current receivables that are stated at cost RIMRANRE 5 S B At Eh )R IE

or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each B EWRIEMIR E N &R

reporting period to determine whether there is HHRETER - UETE

objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence LI ERERERE - BE

of impairment includes observable data that comes to BB IR EIEA S EREEIA

the attention of the Group about one or more of the T—IEsZIEE RSB H /A

following loss events: B SER

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor; - EBALBEANS

Rk

-  a breach of contract, such as a default or —  EH(HEXREE
delinquency in interest or principal payments; TAFESEAE)

= it becoming probable that the debtor will enter — BEBAUREHEESE
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; THMEBSEA

- significant changes in the technological, market, — B m5 BBX
economic or legal environment that have an ERRE L IREMER
adverse effect on the debtor; and ABAHZENEKR

- asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value — BT AEREARE
of an investment in an equity instrument below BEHEANFETE
its cost. A ERERA o
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B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(j). Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)  Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in associates accounted for
under the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see note 1(e)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 1(j)(ii).
The impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance
with note 1(j)(ii).

- For trade and other current receivables carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(j): Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

- If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;

o lease prepayments;

° intangible assets; and

° investment in subsidiaries, associates in the

Company's statement of financial position.
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B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(j). Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’'s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest Group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets to the cash-generating unit
(or Group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXEHEGE)
(CONTINUED)

(i)  Impairment of assets (Continued) () BEREGE)
(i)  Impairment of other assets (Continued) (ii) ROEERHEE)
—  Reversals of impairment losses —  BERFEEX
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been fini A LA 8 € T Y2 [B1 &
a favourable change in the estimates used to KA (b 5T H IR A F &
determine the recoverable amount. B) - BRREELH
FiE[E -
A reversal of impairment loss is limited to B 0] /)R (B R ATE
the asset’s carrying amount that would have B E I R
been determined had no impairment loss BEBLNERTIRE
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of ETNEERABRS
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in PR o 8O AR EEL
the year in which the reversals are recognised. TR TERE R FEE

POzt AJR% -

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment (iii) PRI FHRERwE
Under the Rule Governing the Listing of Securities on RIEE R FTRE 2 ETRAR Al
the Stock Exchange, the Group is required to prepare AEEEERBER SR
an interim financial report in compliance with IAS 34, EIAE PRI B R
Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six BREMBRFEENERZF
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim HABAFSER o FOFR HAHACR -
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing, REERAERMBERER
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end BRI - R - REE
of the financial year (see notes 1(j)(i) and (ii)). TZAE(BFE()G) K (i) °

(k) Inventories (k) #&

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable HFEAKARAI R FEME D

value. BIEE AR ©

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula A T A i 9 AR AR AT

and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion g WEEMEKBAAR B

and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their RAMBFEEERI RFEEE

present location and condition. EIREARPTE R E AR o
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B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

n

(m)

(n)

Inventories (Continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period when the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1(j)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(p) Employee benefits

(i)  Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour
rules and regulations in the PRC are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss as incurred, except to the
extent that they are included in the cost of inventories
not yet recognised as an expense.

(i)  Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as employee cost with a corresponding
increase in the share-based compensation reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at the
grant date using the binomial lattice model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.
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B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(ii) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company's shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

Income tax (Continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

° in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

° in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

(ii)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CXnbE En e
=S 1tH M
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates.

The results of operations outside the mainland China are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into
RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v) Related parties

(i)

(ii)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(b)

(c)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(a)

(d)

(e)

(f)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third party and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by a
person identified in (i).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CXnbE En e
=S 1tH M
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(v) Related parties (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(@ A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(h)  The entity, or any member of a Group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(w) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and
other uncertainties affecting application of those policies and
the sensitivity of reported results to changes in condition and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the
financial statements. The principal accounting policies are set forth
in note 1. The Group believes the following critical accounting
policies involve the most significant judgements and estimates used
in the preparation of the financial statements.

(a) Impairments

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset
may not be recoverable, the asset may be considered
“impaired”, and an impairment loss may be recognised in
profit or loss. The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed
periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable
amounts have declined below the carrying amounts. These
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. WWhen such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In determining the value
in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset are
discounted to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to level of sales volume, sales revenue
and amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is a
reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of sales volume, sales revenue and amount
of operating costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale. These estimates are based on the current market
conditions and the historical experience of selling products
with similar nature. Any change in the assumptions would
increase or decrease the amount of inventories write-down
or the related reversals of write-down made in prior years and
affect the Group’s net assets value. The Group reassesses
these estimates at the end of the reporting period.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances for trade
and other receivables by assessing the recoverability based
on credit history and prevailing market conditions. This
requires the use of estimates and judgements. Allowances
are applied to trade and other receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will affect the
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and thus
the impairment loss in the period in which such estimate is
changed. The Group reassesses the impairment allowances
at the end of the reporting period.

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. Intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised on straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives. The Group reviews
the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order
to determine the amount of depreciation and amortisation
expenses to be recorded during any reporting period. The
useful lives are based on the Group's historical experience
with similar assets and taking into account anticipated
technological changes. The depreciation and amortisation
expenses for future periods are adjusted prospectively if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

The principal activities of the Group are design, manufacture and
wholesale of swimwear and fitness wear.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold less returns,
discounts and value added tax.

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's
business segments. The primary format, business segments, is
based on the Group’'s management and internal reporting structure.

In 2017, the Group's management combined the design,
manufacture and wholesales of fitness wear and sports underwear
into one segment and streamlined its business into separate
segments as follows:

- Design, manufacture and wholesale of swimwear under the
brand name of “Hosa" (“Swimwear-Hosa");

- Design, manufacture and wholesale of swimwear under the
brand name of “Water Cube” (“Swimwear-Water Cube”);

- Design, manufacture and wholesale of fitness wear under
the brand name of “Hosa" (“Fitness wear — Hosa"); and

- Manufacture and sales of fabrics (“Fabrics”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 is

set out below:

3 EXRUERSBEE(E)

MAEE &S RITHREEEREUARE
22017F K2016F12A31BHILFEH
&R R FHE D ERIEmA AL E A
BRIRD EBREREHT AT ¢

Subtotal of
Swimwear  Swimwear Fitness wear reportable
-Hosa - Water Cube - Hosa Fabrics segments Other Total
KEE KEE - EE ] ARE
P -KiI% & i S at Rt it
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
Year ended 31 HE2017F
December 2017 12A31B LEE
Revenue EEE 443,515 138,726 432,939 175,540 1,190,720 8,049 1,198,769
Cost of sales HERAR (234,535) (84,828) (217,339) (156,036) (692,738) (5918)  (698,656)
Gross profit e 208,980 53,898 215,600 19,504 497,982 2,131 500,113
Year ended 31 #E20165F
December 2016 12A31HLEE
Revenue EE 422,819 140,295 540,426 - 1,103,540 - 1,103,540
Cost of sales SHERAR (198,866) (83,524) (253,823) - (636,213) - (636,213)
Gross profit E7 223,953 56,771 286,603 - 567,327 - 567,327

Other represents revenue from sales of health products.

Hib SIRBEMMFHEWA -

The Group's revenue by geographical locations is determined by
the destination where the goods are delivered.

REBIZWIEME B )& ERTIAE
a3 B MR

Year ended 31 December

HBE=12A31HILEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABR¥TFTT ABEBTT
Domestic A 1,047,785 1,021,928
Hong Kong BB 150,413 81,612
Others EHAb 571 =
1,198,769 1,103,540
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 EBEHERSTIHME(HE)
(CONTINUED)

HZE2017F12A31BILEE » A&EE
HB=FEF(2016%F : ZZFF N5
BBAEESETEN10% ° & 20174
12A31BILFE @ RAZEEFHIEE
B4 B ARE401,843,0007T(20164F :
AER#408,400,0007T) °

The Group has three customers (2016: three customers) with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2017. The amount of sales to these
customers amounted to approximately RMB401,843,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB408,400,000).

OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET (LOSS)/ 4 HttgAREMSB(EER) K

INCOME A
Year ended 31 December
H#E12A31ALEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABR¥FTT ARETFT
Other revenue Hag A
Interest income — financial institutions FEUWA — & mikis 37,978 40,900
Government grants BT R 2,300 12,578
Written back of long-aged liabilities REABNERH & 5 - 3,482
Others EAth 1,050 890
41,328 57,850
Other net (loss)/income Hthig (E5E), WA
Exchange (loss)/gain [EH (B518), Wi (2,327) 1,567
Loss on disposal of raw materials & R EHE 18 - (295)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - BERREEK
equipment (250) -
Donation B (800) =
Others HAth (304) (79)
(3,681) 1,193

Government grants of the Group were unconditional and were

therefore recognised as income when received.

AR B BT R AR - BRI
ERF ERR AL
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B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

5

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

5

BRIRAIFIE

BRBEAI AR TSR (G AR T &I
‘&S

Year ended 31 December

#E12A31HLLEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFIT AREFT
(a) Finance costs: (a) HAHEHE:
Interests on bank loans RITEEFE 16,200 4,307
Interests on guaranteed notes B E 7,611 =
23,811 4,307
(b) Staff costs: (b) BIRE:
Contributions to defined contribution FEH TR NG IR
retirement plans (note 26) (K1:#26) 2,075 1,995
Equity-settled share-based payment AR A B AR (D 2 A5
expenses (note 23) X (#1:#23) 231 179
Equity-settled share-based payment IARE TR A5 B AR D S A
expenses reversal (note 23) F & El (47:#23) - (979)
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITENHEMET 89,688 94,907
91,994 96,102
(¢) Other items: (c) HIEH:
Amortisation of intangible assets and | EENRBNES
lease prepayments B8 855 820
Auditor’s remuneration il 2,881 2,702
Depreciation e 8,051 9,028
Operating lease charges in respect of BAMENKEHE
properties ] 6,750 6,374
Research and development WEERC AN (HT7())
costs (note (i) 55,813 63,073
Cost of inventories (note (i) TFEBA(H72(i) 698,656 536,213
Notes: KizE -

(ii)

Research and development costs for the year ended 31 December
2017 include staff costs of employees in the design, research and
development department of RMB10,608,000 (2016: RMB13,064,000),
which are also included in the staff costs as disclosed in note 5(b).

Cost of inventories for the year ended 31 December 2017 includes
RMB50,560,000 (2016: RMB54,080,000) relating to staff costs,
depreciation and amortisation expenses, which amount is included in
the respective total amounts disclosed separately above in notes 5(b)

and (c) for each of these types of expenses.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT FE#HE

(i) HZE2017412 831 B L FE O ERK
AEESFRFAZEBEENE TRAN
AR#10,608,0007T (20164 : AR
13,064,0007T) * JREFF ARMKIEES(b)
WEHE TR -

(ii) BZE2017F12A31BLFENEFEERK
ABHEARE50,660,0007C(20164 -
AR#54,080,0005T) * JhE 8 T
N FEREHEAXEH MLl
That Ak & % B 8 BI7E kit e
5(b) R (c) BIMNETRRI S 4REEH o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 AHERERAEtGESKRZERSP
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER o)eig s
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) EHREREMGZSKEFPH
and other comprehensive income represents: RIEE -

Year ended 31 December

HE12A31ALEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFIT AREFT
Current tax - PRC income tax EPEITRIA — REIFR51R
Provision for the year FERE 43,349 46,094
PRC dividend withholding tax (iv) AP Bl AR B TR HEL (V) 3,600 11,300
Deferred tax EIERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary BB = KA = AE FEE o)
differences (note 24(b)) (Kiat24(b)) 2,334 945
Reversal of dividends withholding tax A% S F8F0F5 52 @
(note 24(b)) (H15t24(b)) (3,441) -
45,842 58,339
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) MEMAZTHRBAMFIEDHE
profit at applicable tax rates: FHFERER -
Year ended 31 December
#HE12A31ALEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARSFT
Profit before taxation BR BB A 292,366 327,176
Notional tax on profit before taxation, — ¥&iE AN & Fi1E Bl AR A
calculated at the statutory tax rates TE W R G E RBR R AT A
applicable to the respective tax BB
jurisdictions (i) 78,392 15l 17
Tax effect of PRC preferential tax FREERBABREE
treatments (i) S i) (41,487) (40,643)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A~ A F0%% 5 sz FOFR 75 57 22 5,337 2,565
Withholding tax on profit retained by BB A 51{R 28 FE&
PRC subsidiaries (iii) TEFORR (1) 3,600 11,300
Actual tax expense BERHIERY 45,842 58,339
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B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
profit at applicable tax rates: (Continued)

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject
to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Group
did not earn any assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

(ii) According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") Law that
took effect on 1 January 2008, the statutory income tax rate of
the Group's subsidiaries in mainland China which are Haosha
Industry (Fujian) Co., Ltd. (“Haosha Industry”) and Haosha
Industry (Datian) Co., Ltd. (“Haosha Industry (Datian)"”) is 25%.

In accordance with the CIT Law, its implementation rules and
the relevant regulations, Haosha Industry was granted the High
and New Technology Enterprise Status (“HNTE") in 2013 for a
valid period of 3 years from 2013 to 2015 which entitles Haosha
Industry to a reduced income tax rate at 15% during the valid
periods under the CIT Law and its relevant regulations. Haosha
Industry successfully renewed the HNTE qualification on 1
December 2016 and continues to enjoy a preferential income
tax rate of 15% for another three years from 2016 to 2018.

(iii) According to PRC CIT Law and its implementation rules,
dividends receivable by non-PRC corporate residents from
PRC enterprises which are earned since 1 January 2008 are
subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%, unless reduced
by tax treaties or arrangements. Under the Sino-Hong Kong
Double Tax Arrangement, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident
will be liable for withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend
income derived from the PRC if the Hong Kong tax resident is
the “beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more of the equity
interests of the PRC Company.

On 25 October 2017, the Group had obtained the certificates of
Hong Kong tax residents from the Inland Revenue Department
of Hong Kong, which are effective from 2016 to 2018.

The Directors of the Group have determined that in determining
the amounts of dividends to be distributed from PRC
subsidiaries to the Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary in future,
the amounts of dividends declared or to be declared by the
Company would be considered. As at 31 December 2017, the
Directors of the Group determined that the estimated dividends
to be distributed will not be greater than RMB111,000,000 (31
December 2016: RMB107,820,000) in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CXb e E e
S tH HIIEE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 AHERERAEtGESKRZERSP

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER BIFR{S IR (#8)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) MEMZHEBREPAREFEINENE
profit at applicable tax rates: (Continued) R - (8)
(iv)  PRC dividend withholding tax represents tax charged by the (iv) =R EAR BNBLAD A BB A5 A
PRC tax authority on dividends distributed by the Group’s PRC Fﬂ?ﬁf%@@%%ﬁﬁﬁéi
subsidiaries during the year. AT A TLIE
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7 EEHH
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the %%?frmﬁ@ﬂ?ﬁ%%”&\ﬁ\ﬂ%iﬁﬂ%SS%ﬂ)
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies ﬂ%&@a(ﬁﬁgiiﬂﬁﬁﬂ)ﬁﬁ']%z
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is HE BN T R
as follows:
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE2017F12A31HLLFEE

Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement

and benefits benefit Share-based Discretionary
Fee in kind scheme payments (i) bonuses Total
Fid - R0 Ehimfl NG
g REMET FHEIMR  EERERG) BT it

RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000
ABBTE ABMTT ABBTET ABRTT ARRTT  ARRTT

Executive Directors RITES

Mr. Shi Hongliu MR - 963 4 - - 967
Mr. Shi Hongyan HEBRERE - 843 4 - - 847
Mr. Shi Zhixiong SR E - 609 4 = - 613
Mr. Lui Wai Ming (/ ERHFT L) - 1,721 16 231 - 1,974
Sub-total NG - 4,142 28 231 - 4,401
Independent Non-executive BHIFHTER

Directors

Ms. Ko Yuk Lan SEMLL - 250 - - - 250
Mr. He Wenyi X&LE - 180 - - = 180
Mr. Yao Ge hXEE - 180 - - = 180
Sub-total Nt - 610 - - - 610
Total st - 4,752 28 231 - 5,011
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(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

7 DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 7 EFHM(E)
Year ended 31 December 2016 #FF20165FE12A31HILFEE
Salaries,  Contributions
allowances  to retirement
and benefits benefit  Share-based  Discretionary
Fee inkind scheme  paymentsfi) bonuses Total
e 2R RIER R A
ik REMER SRR EEREF [GlEpiaan @t
RMB 000 RMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ABEFT AREFT  AEETT  ARETT AREFT  AREFT
Executive Directors BiTER
Mr. Shi Hongliu iibines - 962 4 - - 966
Mr. Shi Hongyan MBS E - 842 4 - - 846
Mr. Shi Zhixiong HEELE - 604 4 - - 608
Mr. Lui Wai Ming () RIESEEN - 1,195 12 179 - 1,386
Sub-total Nt - 3,603 24 179 - 3,806
Independent Non-executive HWIFHRITES
Directors
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan SERTL - 250 - - - 250
Mr. He Wenyi XELE - 180 - - - 180
Mr. Yao Ge R xE - 180 - - - 180
Sub-total et - 610 - - - 610
Total a5t - 4,213 24 179 - 4416
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BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Lui Wai Ming was appointed as executive director on 1 April 2016.

(ii) These payments represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the directors under the Company's share option scheme.
The value of these share options is measured according to the Group's
accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in
note 1(p)(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
option scheme” in the directors’ report and note 23.

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017, no amount was
paid or payable by the Group to the directors or any of the five
highest paid individuals set out in note 8 as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2016:
four) are directors whose remuneration are disclosed in note 7.
Emoluments in respect of the remaining one individual (2016: one)
are as follows:

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

EEHE (1)
His -

(i) EEHTAEN2016F481HERITA
HITES -

(i) EEMRAREAARBRESSRT
ERMEREMGETEE - BEBERIEN
BERREOHE () () FFHI B AL
AR BEENR S ETBERMaT= ©

ELEAN A FE - BERENEZGRR
REBRESE B EEFRERME23
RS IR Bl — B IR -

HE2016F K&2017F12 A31H IEF
B AEEBES M EMESSHME
SHEIIM AR Z= & B A T E[FKIE -
YE & N B2 7 58 (B8] =k N BE 7N £ (& B A0 82 )
& - HERBERME -

ERFHMAL

hEmEEHMALFR @ MHA(20164F :
ME)BES  FENHIMAKE7HE
E o % N —2(2016%F : —%)ALTHF
BN -

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31ALEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBFT ABR#T T
Salaries and other emoluments < N EL th 5 B 555 489
Retirement scheme contributions RORET IR 16 15
571 504

The emoluments of the one individual (2016: one) with the highest
emoluments are within the following band:

bt —#(2016% : —R)HZSHMAL
BT T T SIS E

Year ended 31 December

#F12A31ALLERE
2017 2016
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AZ
HK$500,001 to 1,000,000 500,0012 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1
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B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB246,524,000 (2016: RMB268,837,000) and
the weighted average number of 1,667,276,000 ordinary
shares (2016: 1,660,301,000) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

9

=RAEF

(a)

SEREFRT

FREABFDIREARAR AL
BRESBVEAEGINBARK
246,524,0007C(20164F : AR
268,837,00070) M FNE BE1TE
A NHEF 1 801,667,276,000/%
(20164 : 1,660,301,0000% )&t

st

Weighted average number of ordinary shares HBRMETFH&
2017 2016
‘000 ‘000
T FhR
Ordinary shares at 1 January B A1 R 1,667,276 1,658,881
Effect of share options exercised TIEBREN T - 1,420
Weighted average number of ordinary 712 831 H#)E 8BA%
shares at 31 December INEETF 98 1,667,276 1,660,301
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) HWEEERT

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB246,524,000 (2016: RMB268,837,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,667,359,000 shares (2016: 1,665,025,000), calculated as

ERBERADBRBEARNQR L
BREZBRRELHINBARK
246,524,0007C(20164F : AREE
268,837,000t ) & I 38 A% hn e
#1881,667,359,000/% (20164 :

follows: 1,665,025,000/% )5t AT
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) HERINE T8 (187F)
2017 2016
‘000 ‘000
T®& FHR
Weighted average number of ordinary 712 831 H #)E 8%
shares at 31 December N5 8 1,667,276 1,660,301
Effect of deemed issue of shares under iRIEANA alBE T2
the Company's share option scheme T ¥HBEMEZEITIND
for nil consideration (note 23) & (Hf7223) 83 4,724
Weighted average number of ordinary 712831 B &) @M%
shares (diluted) at 31 December IREF S8 (H5E) 1,667,359 1,665,025
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 %  BRERRW
Furniture,
Plant and Motor fixturesand  Leasehold Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment improvement in progress Total
#F BERES RE RERKE HEMRRE ERIE it

RMBO00  RMBO0O  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB000  AMB000
ANRRTL ARETL ARETT ARETL ARETL ARETE ARETI

Cost BE:

1 January 2016 ®2016%F1 518 29,330 35,310 8419 83816 8,967 34,382 125,224
Additions AE - 4,648 157 575 9% 8912 14,383
At 31 December 2016 M2016%123318 29,330 39,958 8,576 9,391 9,063 43,294 139,612
1 January 2017 M2017E1R18 29,330 39,958 8576 9,391 9,063 43,294 139,612
Additions AE - 11,803 67 125 571 3,438 16,604
Disposals & = (3,990) (942) (249) - - (5,181)
At 31 December 2017 M2017%123318 29,330 41,M 7,101 9,867 9,634 46,732 151,035

Accumulated depreciation R :

1 January 2016 12016€1 818 8,449 18,558 6,548 6,012 5718 - 45,285
Charge for the year FENE 1,694 3,204 812 1,458 1,860 - 9,028
At 31 December 2016 120168128318 10,143 21,762 7,360 7,470 1578 - 54,313
1 January 2017 20171 18 10,143 21,762 7,360 7,470 7578 - 54,313
Charge for the year FERE 1,694 3,895 520 945 997 - 8,051
Written back on disposals (&R - (3,707) (895) (212) - - (4,814)
At 31 December 2017 120178128318 11,837 21,950 6,985 8,203 8,575 - 57,550
Net book value: IRESE

At 31 December 2017 12017412A31H 17,493 25,821 716 1,664 1,059 46,732 93,485
At 31 December 2016 120165128318 19,187 18,196 1,216 1,921 1,485 43,29 85,299
All property, plant and equipment owned by the Group are located AEBABYIZE - BRERBEBEILRF
in the PRC. Buildings are situated on leasehold land with lease term o BFATENRBIMHEE LM - M
of 50 years in the PRC. EHIA/50%F ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

11 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 11 FftEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARTIT AEBFT
Cost: 5% 4
At 1 January M1A1H 19,304 19,304
Additions INE - _
At 31 December ®12H31H 19,304 19,304
Accumulated amortisation: REtiss -
At 1 January R1A18 1,985 1,670
Charge for the year FEEY 415 415
At 31 December M®12H31H 2,400 1,985
Net book value: REB{HE -
At 31 December ®12A831H 16,904 17,319

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's interests in leasehold land
are held on medium-term leases of 50 years in the PRC. As at 31
December 2017, the Group was in the process of obtaining the land
use right certificate in respect of a parcel of leasehold land in the
PRC with net book value of RMB6,497,000 (2016: RMB6,669,000).
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(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 E|EEE
Software
04
RMB’000
ANEBFT
Cost: 5% 4
At 1 January 2016 20161811 1,896
Additions NE 149
At 31 December 2016 2016512 H31H 2,045
At 1 January 2017 R20175F1H1H 2,045
Additions VN 1,233
At 31 December 2017 R2017412831H 3,278
Accumulated amortisation: REHis -
At 1 January 2016 R201651H1H 1,127
Charge for the year F T 405
At 31 December 2016 7R2016912831H 1,632
At 1 January 2017 R201741 818 1,532
Charge for the year TR 440
At 31 December 2017 H2017%12831H 1,972
Net book value: IRIEPRE -
At 31 December 2017 2017%F12A31H 1,306
At 31 December 2016 M2016512H31H 513

The amortisation charge for the year is included in administrative
and other operating expenses in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

FEEHBRADAASHEBEREREME
BRERTRMEMGEFRSA -

HOSA International Limited i& ;Y EEEBRE AR
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(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13 KRB AFMRE
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which —FY@%\ZWEE‘%%K%@E’U%% - &
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. EXBENHBA
Place of Particular of Proportion of
incorporation issued and ownership
Name of Company and business paid up capital interest held by Principal activities
AR R AL R BETR EE5):0)
[ERE EEEs BEEXHE ARG TEER

the Company a subsidiary

F087 —HRELT

Hosa Investment Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1 100% - Investment holding
("Hosa Investment”)

EHREBERBRAR(DEDRE ] RBERES (E 100% - REER

&b

Hosa Group Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding
("Hosa Group”)

EOEBERBRAR(DESERE]) BB 10,000 7T - 100% REER

Haosha Industry* PRC RMB121,500,000 - 100% Design, manufacture and

sales of swimwear and
fitness wear

ELEE(RR)ARA HE ARE - 100% =&t BUEREEKEE)
121,500,0007T R 5 PR
i The English translation of the entity’s name is for reference only. The & ZENRAENEEEEESE - %
official name of the entity is in Chinese. SRAIMERBHRFX °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

14 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 14 RBEAFTRSE
The following contains the particulars of the associate, which is AT S 7328 S AR EFS - bR
an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is not —RIFLTHARIDE  HMHERET
available: AT :

Proportion of ownership interest

HHERALE
Place of Group's
Form of business incorporation Particulars of effective Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of associate structure and business registered capital interest Company subsidiary activity
BREIR Bt &0
L} UNGEE RERH BB BHiE BAEE BFLERE  BTLERE IERE
Beijing Hongyu Innovative Incorporated PRC RMB 30% - 30% Provision of sports
Technology Co.,Ltd* (3t 3 71,428 571 and health
EFERRRBRAR) contents on the
mobile Internet
(Note 1)
IREFERRBERRE B e ARH B E R LE
71,428,571 PREAE
(Hrit1)
& The English translation of the entity's name is for reference only. The * TELBOEXBZEHRZE - Z%E
official name of the entity is in Chinese. MIEXNZBAEF
Note 1:  On 31 October 2017, Haosha (Shenzhen) Investment and KiaE1 :  H2017F10A318 @ AR AIZEK
Consulting Limited ([ Hosa Shenzhen |), a wholly-owned subsidiary BRARED CRINKEZABRA
of the Company, conditionally agreed to subscribe for 30% of the Al (2RI 1) A i F = R
interest in Beijing Hongyu Innovative Technology Co., Ltd for a IR EFRIFHE AR R RI0%E
consideration of RMB100 million. The aforementioned transaction = REAARBUEL - Ll 5
was completed on 19 December 2017. ER2017F12 8198 58K °
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(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

14 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 14 REEAFRE(E)
The associate is accounted for using the equity method in the i N RINERE SRR A EA
consolidated financial statements. AR -
Summarised financial information of the associate, reconciled to B N AR B 55 BB A OB S TR R A
the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements, are HIBRE & FRH EBRIEA T -

disclosed below:

2017
RMB’000
ARWETTT
Gross amounts of the associate BRE QTR
Current assets MENEE 145,506
Non-current assets BB E 8,618
Current liabilities mEEE 14,073
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 100,000
Equity e 40,051
Revenue e 220
Loss for the year FEEE (52,812)
Other comprehensive income HAhsr A s -
Total comprehensive income e ERE (52,812)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in the associate FEEXRENRSZHBELTHES
Gross amounts of net assets of the associate fE N ERFEESRE 40,051
Group's effective interest SEB MR 30%
Group's share of net assets of the associate SE D hEE A R R EE 12,015
Goodwill Bl 87,985
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements EHIBEHRERFRRE SR 100,000
15 LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE 15 BEHTFPHELFNER
The loan is to Beijing Hongyu and is unsecured, for a term of three ZERBERTIRETF - £51F - 55
years at the interest rate of 4.75% per annum. =F - FHERBL75% °
16 INVENTORIES 16 &
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial (a) EHMBERIZHESHLUTEH
position comprise: B :
At 31 December
#®12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFIT AR TFT
Raw materials JRAEE 188,642 101,390
Work in progress ERm 12,624 9,771
Finished goods XA 87,013 109,094
288,279 220,255
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(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

16 INVENTORIES (CONTINUED) 16 #H(#)

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as (b) WREMAXZAFARENERSR
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: EAMMT -

Year ended 31 December

HE12A31HLLEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETFIT ARETFT
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFERAE 698,762 536,094
Write-down of inventories FERAE 649 823
Reversal of write-down of inventories 77 & & & (755) (704)
698,656 536,213
17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES HoREMBIRR
At 31 December
®12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT AREFT
Trade receivables B S EBGR 475,236 354,559
Bills receivable EUEE = 35
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W REREM(HT7E17(b)
(note 17(b)) (689) =
474,547 354,594
Deposits and prepayments E& RIERR 65,035 40,430
Other receivables H h FE UK 32,844 26,523
572,426 421,547

P B B 5 R MR B B At FE MR TR ER 10
—FAKRE -

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered
within one year.

AEEEMARITREZEE L ER
THESEKRFR - R2017412A31
BNERETEEERALEZEBRAR
#¥256,030,0007C(20164F : AR
401,490,0007C)f5 B B BERIAEE TR
TTRAREIER 2% - AREARLRE
WERAR N FEBRER - Bt - A&
EX20175F12 318 RF20165F12 A
31 BRIEERZ BRI PR L ZRES
FEUR -

The Group accepts bank and commercial acceptance bills for
settlement of trade receivables. As at 31 December 2017,
outstanding bank and commercial acceptance bills in the amount of
RMB256,030,000 (2016: RMB401,490,000) have been discounted
to the banks. As these bills have been discounted without recourse,
the Group has derecognised these outstanding bills as receivables
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

177 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade and bills receivables (which are included in trade
and other receivables), based on the invoice date and net of
allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

17 RHREMBUR(E)

(a)

RS 7 #

RE|EHR - IRIBHZ B HWH
B 2R P i B9 & 5 R W e B K
ER(EERE S R EMEKK
MBBRE AT

At 31 December

®12831H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETFT
Within 1 month (KENEEA 106,892 91,746
More than 1 month but within 3 months 11E A LA E1E31E AR 156,259 168,628

More than 3 months but within 3fE A LA E1E6{EA R

6 months 136,555 78,779
More than 6 months but within 1 year 618 A F{B1FER 72,085 13,037
More than 1 year 18 2,756 2,404
474,547 354,594

Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out in note
27(a).

As at 31 December 2017, current balance included in trade
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) amounted
to RMB399,705,000 (2016: RMB339,153,000). Amount
past due was RMB74,841,000 (2016: RMB15,441,000).
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT FE#HE

AEBEEBURNEMFIBEHR
MizF27(a) °

MR2017F12A318 ' B8HFEEZ
S IEW R (F0 % R ER &) ma B
Hi&Eeh A AR #5399,705,0007T
(20164 : ARK#339,153,000
L) M EEAEARE
74,841,0007T(20164 : AR
15,441,0007T) © b #EiE B IR R
1B A JRE Uk ZRIB BB NP 4 3T 2R B 4042
SMEZEFEER] -

B HE SR E 2 BYRGRE S H
HEAKBEABRMHFAZEYE
FBER - REBELR  BEE
BE ARNEEERTESEAE
8 BRSHBDEEST2H
Yml - R AR &S R
RERHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

177 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that the recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly (see note 1(j)(i).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components, is
as follows:

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

17 RHREMBUR(E)

(b) 3% 5 FE Moy o e B LSt SR 40k {0

BRE SRR R R E AR
BEIEKXERBERIIE  HEEX
SEEAKRE S T LKA
1ERlER - EUERT - BERK
ERNE S UM (R
1)) °

FARBRENED - BREKE
NEREBRAIIT

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AREFT

At 1 January R®1A18 — -
Impairment loss recognised HRBEEE 689 -
At 31 December ®12A31H 689 -
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B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

18 PLEDGED DEPOSITS 18 BEEWER
At 31 December
®12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TFIT ARETFT
Amount pledged as security for bank ERIRITERER 2 5KIE
loans (note 21) (H1a#21) 69,560 207,800
Amount pledged as security for bills ERENERER 2 KIE
payable (note 20) (H17%20) 63,357 48,159
132,917 255,959

19

The pledged deposits are expected to be released upon the
settlement of the relevant bank loans and bills payable within 12

months.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND FIXED

DEPOSITS HELD AT BANKS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits held at

EEREREHNBEEBRITERR
FET SRR TR 218 B ARER

19 ReRBELFERVRBITER

2

(a) HEeRBRSERMBRRBITHR

banks comprise: HENFERBU THRERAR -
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FIT AREFr
Fixed deposits held at banks with TR ERkRA=1E A/
maturity over three months HRITEER 1,370,673 1,364,266
Cash and cash equivalents in the RefiRengRrz
consolidated cash flow statement ReERRSEEY 351,916 88,796
1,722,589 1,453,062

Cash and cash equivalent represents cash at bank and on
hand as at the end of the reporting period.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND FIXED 19 ReRREFER/RMRBITER

DEPOSITS HELD AT BANKS (CONTINUED) FR(E\E)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated (b) KMRWFEEEERSRSNY
from operations: R :

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31AILLEE
2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB 000
i3 ARBFT ARE T
Profit before taxation BRRaFE 292,366 327,176
Adjustments for: B TPIRIEEL A
— Depreciation 8 5(c) 8,051 9,028
— Amortisation of intangible — R A ERTENE 5(c)
assets and lease SHEH
repayments 855 820
- Finance costs UL %N 5(a) 23,811 4,307
— Loss on disposal of property, —HEME  BEK 4
plant and equipment FAEHIER 250 =
— Interest income-financial —F WA — & Bl 4
institutions it (37,978) (40,900)
— Provision for doubtful debts — R 17(b) 689 =
— (Reversal of write—down)/ — (B EHR), 16(b)
write-down of inventories HEEE (106) 119
- Equity-settled share-based — AR AEE 2R 5(b)
payments X f 231 (800)
— Foreign exchange loss — [ 5 518 2,327 2,338
290,496 302,088
Changes in working capital EEESEE
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 775 (3&40) @4 (67,918) 38,705
Increase in trade and other B 5 K H b USRI N
receivables (157,457) (82,002)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and B 5 K EMEN K
other payables 2, Cld) 64,322 (142,257)
Cash generated from operations ~ && 15 & 129,443 116,534

HOSA International Limited i& ;Y EEEBRE AR
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CXnbE En e
=S 1tH M
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND FIXED 19 REeRREFER/RYURBITER

DEPOSITS HELD AT BANKS (CONTINUED) FR(#E)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) MEITDEEABHHIE
activities
Borrowings
from Guaranteed
Bank loans  shareholders notes Total
BITRR BERER R #at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000
AEETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
(note 21) (note 29(c)) (note 22)

(Hfz21) (B1:#29(c) (Ht:#22)

At 1 January 2017 ®201751R18 320,632 53,671 - 374,303
Changes from financing MERSREN .

cash flows:
Proceeds from bank loans RITEFTERUR 348,977 - - 348,977
Repayments of bank loans EBIRER (279,497) - - (279,497)
Borrowings from shareholders BRERFEHE - 5,771 - 5,771
Repayment of borrowings from  EERRER

shareholders - (56,473) - (56,473)
Net proceeds from issue of notes  #4TZIE S 78 - - 323,823 323,823
Total changes from financing MERSTREE

cash flows 69,480 (50,702) 323,823 342,601
Exchange adjustments EeEE 00| 1297 | 2969 | @403 (20349
Other change: HtiHE
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) B (fr:25(a) - - 1,692 1,692
Total other change Hitn g - - 1,692 1,692
At 31 December 2017 120175128 31H 377,135 - 321,112 698,247
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

20 WHEHEMMEMSR

At 31 December

®12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TFIT ARETFT
Trade payables = AR 35,842 20,052
Bills payable EREE 157,933 124,098
Receipts in advance TEUK 2,167 1,455

Amount due to the immediate ENBEZEZERS

controlling party - 53,671
Dividends payable FERIRR B 12 12
Other payables and accruals HibEN R R IERTE A 55,808 36,740
251,762 236,028

Bills payable as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were secured by
pledged bank deposits as disclosed in note 18.

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
creditors and bills payable (which are included in trade and other
payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows:

R2017F KX2016F 12 A31 B EMNE
BAB BRI 717 sRIEHE IR T 3 FE A MY
E18 °

PRAE 5 M E AN RIBHIN — F A4
R RBBATIZERIEE -

RBEHR - RIBEAZ AN E S RN
RN ENERGIAR S REMEN
FOMERE DM T

At 31 December

®12A31H
2017 2016
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR¥TT AR¥TFT
Within 1 month ME AR 48,200 51,296
More than 1 month but within 3 months 11 5 A H{B31#& 5B A 69,725 15,750
More than 3 months but within 6 months  31& 3 LA_E{E6{E A A 54,494 70,697
More than 6 months 61E A LA L 21,356 6,407
193,775 144,150

HOSA International Limited i& ;Y EEEBRE AR
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B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

21 BANK LOANS 21 BITER
As at 31 December 2017, the bank loans were repayable with 12 #2017@12H31 B FBITEREM2
months. The bank loans were secured or guaranteed as follows: BARNEE - TERAER SRS
IR
At 31 December
®»12A831H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETFTT ARETFT
Secured by pledged bank deposits B E MR T B R
(note 18) (K15£18) 61,665 206,632
Guaranteed by a key management REEEEABRE
personnel (note 29(b)) (Kt:£29(b)) 36,300 14,000
Unsecured RE IR 279,170 100,000
377,135 320,632

The bank loans were mainly used for purchase of raw materials and
financing the dividends paid to shareholders.

22 NOTES PAYABLE 22

As at 31 December 2017, the notes payable were issued to
institutional investors, with an effective interest rate of 9.17% and
repayable with 12 months.

RITEREERERERMH R MK
%H”— B o

RiE

M®2017%12A318 - TTF?“‘%W%
KEE  BEFEREINT%  WER2
&8 A REE -

At 31 December

®12831H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFIT AREFT
Guaranteed by shareholders (note 29(b))  EPXERIER (H12£29(b)) 321,112 =

The carrying amount of the notes payable is not materially different
from its fair value as at 31 December 2017.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

23 EQUITYSETTLEDSHARE-BASEDTRANSACTIONS

The Company has two share option schemes namely, a Pre-
IPO Employee Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) and a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”), which were adopted on 23 November 2011.

On 23 November 2011, the Company granted options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 20,500,000 shares of the Company to its
directors, senior management, employees and others under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, being 80% of the initial public
offering price.

The Share Option Scheme shall remain in force for a period of
10 years ending on 23 November 2021. Pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme, the directors of the Company may invite, at their
discretion, eligible participants, including employees and directors
of any company in the Group, to take up options to subscribe for
shares of the Company to a maximum of 40,000,000 shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2017,the Company did not grant
any option to subscribe under the Share Option Scheme.

On 1 April 2016, the Company granted options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 1,500,000 shares of the Company to its executive
director and chief financial officer under the Share Option Scheme.

The exercise price of options under the Share Option Scheme shall
be determined by the board of directors at its absolute discretion
but in any event will not be less than the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the shares (the “Shares”) as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date, which
must be a business day, of the date of grant;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii)  the nominal value of the Shares.

23

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

LigatRLUKRMNSEEMHR
L]

ARATMN20114E11 A23 B L AMIBE
REHERT &) - BNER AR EREEER
REEEI([E R AR EREREE )
N RERE T &) ([ ERRRERTE] ) -

MR2011511 8238 » AR ARES
RARBEENBRENAENEES -
BREEAR  EEREMALRSE
AIZE RN AAEEENS0%REAS K
20,500,000% 452 &l i 17 HY BB AR AEE o

BB iR 21 A HA A 104 - HE2021
F11H238 A1E - BIEERERTE - K
RAESAMERBEERKLEE (R
BAEEBETEAARMNEERES)
4N 0] 5 % :R8£40,000,0000% A A &1 f%
1 EBE AR -

HE2017F12A31BIEFE » XA A
I AR IR BB AR RE AT E1IR B T B IR -

R2016F4 18 - AR AIRIEEERT
EMERTEEREEVHERE AR
8%1,500,00008 45 A &) A&7 FO B AR A o

WA 8 TR BB hES
BRMEIEET - MBI EER
THIRBEE -

() WEBREZACA/EXER)H
R B mERMS & B ([
3 DU (E :

(il ZEFEEHAMAEALEBES
B B RIE R A5 B F Uk i
E: R

(i)  PREPEE °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 23 LERERLUEGHAEENX

(CONTINUED)
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:
(i)  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
Options granted on 23 November 2011
Number of
options granted

% (#8)

(a)

BHOGERRGESHFNT

(i)

HAR LR ERIER &

R2011411 23 #1689
BRI

Vesting Contractual life
condition of options

ERERERE FEGRT BRESHTEH
Options granted to KT ESHIERE 6,460,000 Note (*) Note (¥)
directors HiaE(*) BiEE)
Options granted to RYeREREEN 3,400,000 Note (*) Note (¥)
senior management BE RS A BiaE*) HiaE%)
Options granted to BT EMEED 8,640,000 Note (*) Note (*)
other employees B AR A Kt Kz (*)
Options granted to T EMALTH 2,000,000 Note (¥) Note (¥)
others HEfx i BizE*) BiEE)
20,500,000
Note (*): These options are exercisable during the period Hatr) . ZEBREATRE Z2H

commencing from the day immediately following
the expiry of the one year period after 16 December
2011 (the “Listing Date"”), and ending on the day
falling five years after 23 November 2011 (the
“Granted Date”), during which, (a) up to 30% options
granted may be exercised on or prior to the end of
the second year after the Listing Date; (b) subject to
(a), up to 60% options granted may be exercised on
or prior to the end of the third year after the Listing
Date; and (c) subject to (a) and (b), all outstanding
options may be exercised prior to the expiry of the
said exercise period, failing which the options will
lapse and no longer be exercisable.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

23 LIERGEELKRGSEENRE
% (#8)

BRHOGRREHFNT © ()

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: (a)
(continued)

(ii)  Share Option Scheme (i) FEERIEE
Options granted on 1 April 2016 R20165F45 15K

Number of Vesting Contractual life

options granted condition of options

ERBRERE BERT BRESHTH

Options granted to RERES Note (#) Note (#)
a director 1,500,000 Bzt #) Bzt #)

Note (#): These options are exercisable during the period

commencing from the day immediately following the
expiry of the two-year period after 1 April 2016 (the
“Granted Date”), and ending on the day falling five
years after the Granted Date, during which, (a) up to
30% options granted may be exercised on or prior
to the end of the third year after the Granted Date;
(b) subject to (a), up to 60% options granted may be
exercised on or prior to the end of the fourth year
after the Granted Date; and (c) subject to (a) and (b),
all outstanding options may be exercised prior to the
expiry of the said exercise period, failing which the
options will lapse and no longer be exercisable.

KiaFw) - EREREA R R
20164418 ([#&
B H &R E Hm
Z B RRELAR
Hie A FE Nz BMTT
&+ H(a)&%30%
X B AR 4 AT A %
HHBE = FEFER
ZEI1TE  (b)KR(a)
BHREREN &
60 % 1% tH i A% 42 Al ;A
B BB EMFF
sk Z AT : (c)BR
(a) (b)) &S ERE
SN BT M ARITER
BERRAE AT A LT
HE A TE - T8
7% 5 B R G R R
NEAIITHE
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(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 23 LERERLUEGHAEENX

(CONTINUED) % (8)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise price of (b) MERENOHERMEFYTEER
share options are as follows: mTF:
(i)  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (i) BRLHZEREREND
2017 2016
Exercise price No. of options Exercise price No. of options
TEE  EREHE 171EE EREHE

Outstanding at the beginning  REFIHRITE

of the year - - HK$1.28 11,415,000
Exercised during the year FABITE - = HK$1.28 (8,395,000)
Expired during the year FALER - - HK$1.28 (3,020,000)
Outstanding at the end RERAARITE

of the year - - = =
Exercisable at the end RERA] F17{E

of the year - - = =
There were no outstanding or exercisable options under K2016 %2017 12 A31
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 31 December H - EEARITES AT TR
2016 and 2017. BIR AR SRR -

(ii)  Share Option Scheme (i) FERRIEsE
The options outstanding at 31 December 2017 was M2017F12A318  HAK
1,500,000, and had an exercise price of HK$2.37 and T A AR 71,500,000
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.25 f&% - 7EE R2.3787T ¢ N
years. ERIRE DF B R3.255F ©
(¢) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) HEEMHAAREERMRERS
The fair value of services received in return for share options BhAZHAPT IR O B AR T XS AR 75
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share HAREE DHREERHER
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share ERARERE o FTIR B E
options granted is measured based on a binomial lattice WARBEGEZR ZEAHEE
model. The contractual life of the share option is used as NFrE - BRENESNFHIR
an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are AR - IREITER ARG
incorporated into the binomial lattice model. AZIEH EER o
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(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 23 LERERLEGHAEENHX

(CONTINUED) % (8)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (continued) (c) FMEERLRERRR(H)
i & = r
(i)  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (i) ERZEIRERIEERE &
Fair value at measurement date HK$12,439,818
R EBERNAREE 12,439,818 7T
Share price HK$1.60
B fn B8 1.60/87T
Exercise price HK$1.28
1IE(E 1.2877T
Expected volatility 51.40%
TEERK IR
Expected option life 5 years
BB RETRRT A 54
Expected dividends 5.06%
TEAARR B
Risk-free interest rate 0.67%

R F R

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility T8 HA R I8 DA 52K e (AR 3%
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining AR A B0 AN -39 IR HR
life of the share options), adjusted for any expected FTE)AREYE - WRERET
changes to future volatility based on publicly available NHREEHEREERIOK
information. Expected dividends are based on historical 1R 79 £ fr] T8 HA &2 1L T LA 78
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions o HHAREAEEIRE A
could materially affect the fair value estimate. % o FIRAFHRARR

BBBEH AR AT E
EEARE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 23 LERERLUEGHAEENX

(CONTINUED) % (8)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (continued) (c) FMEERLRERRR(H)
(ii)  Share Option Scheme (ii) AR HEE &

Fair value at measurement date HK$760,744
R EBERNAREE 760,74475 7T
Share price HK$2.22
B fn B8 2.22%7T
Exercise price HK$2.37
1IE(E 23777
Expected volatility 34.37%
TEERK IR
Expected option life 5 years
BB RETRRT A 54
Expected dividends 2.42%
TEAARR B
Risk-free interest rate 0.91%

R F R

The volatility is estimated by the weekly historical
volatility of the Company as at the Granted Date.
Expected dividends is estimated by the trailing
12-month dividend payouts of the Company divided
by its closing share price as at the dividend declaration
date. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 EHMBHRARPBMERN
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) EHMBERAERTPPYEHRE
financial position represents: ¥

At 31 December

®12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFT
PRC corporate income tax R RS 4,785 3,046
PRC dividend withholding tax R B % B AR 33,900 30,300
38,685 33,346
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b) ERILBERAFTERAMR
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised RE B E AR 2R R R A IR I
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the MBEE (ABE)EKSD RE
movements during the year are as follows: NEBIAT ¢
Provision of
impairment of  Provision for Undistributed
depositsand  impairment profit of PRC  Unrealised
prepayments of inventories Accruals  subsidiaries profits Total
BRERARR FERELF
BERRE HERAERR EHER XABHE  REAREH it

RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO0O  RMBO00  RMBU00  RMBOOO
ARBTL  ARETL ARETL ARETL AREFL  ARETI

Deferred tax assetsand ~ BEREEER
liabilities arising from: BREE:

At 1 January 2016 BAZO 61718 - 132 1,711 (10,782) 2,123 (6,816)
Credited/(charged) to PR/ (Fk)

profit or loss 114 18 (1,711) (11,300) 634 (12,245)
Release upon distribution RS Bk

of dividends - - - 11,300 - 11,300

At31 December 2016and 720165128318 %

1 January 2017 201781R18 114 150 - (10,782) 2,751 (7,761)
Charged to profit or loss RERRRR (10) (16) - (5,550) (2,308) (7,884)
Reversal for change of BMBRE A

withholding tax rate - - - 5,391 - 5,391
Release upon distribution of ~ 7RRk S &k

dividends - - - 3,600 - 3,600
At 31 December 2017 12017128318 104 134 - (7,341) 449 (6,654)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

24

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

24 SHMBRARPOMER

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (#8)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued) (b) ERRDEERFEEIERAR(E)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statements of financial BE G SR R EER
position:

At 31 December
#®12A318
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARHFT
Net deferred tax asset recognised RE FFI AR R FERE
in the consolidated statement of B EEEFE
financial position 687 3,021
Net deferred tax liability recognised REFI AR RERR
in the consolidated statement of BB IEB ERE
financial position (7,341) (10,782)
(6,654) (7,761)
(c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (c) MFRERHEERARR

As at 31 December 2017, temporary differences relating to
the undistributed profits of certain subsidiaries of the Group
in the mainland China amounted to RMB1,815,372,000
(2016: RMB1,647,705,000). Deferred tax liabilities of
RMB84,852,000 (2016: RMB153,988,000) have not been
recognised in respect of the withholding tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits, as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries in
the mainland China and the Directors have determined that
these profits are not likely to be distributed in the foreseeable

future.
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BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 B{EX - FHiERER
(a) Movements in the components of equity (a) HSHFERBIHEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances REBEME RS EZD 25
of each component of the Group's consolidated equity R EBREHEE RN S GriE
is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in HEHRK - ARFRFVNEFRK
equity. Details of the changes in the Company's individual B 7 2= {8 Bl 7R 2 By 2 Zh R 1B E 5
components of equity between the beginning and the end of A

the year are set below:

The Company r. /N
Capital Share-based
Share Share  redemption Exchange  compensation Retained
capital premium TeServes resernve reserve gamings Total
Wi AEE

R ROEE EAERRE EifE  WEEER ZiER o)
(note 25(c))  (note 28(cl))  (note 250l (note 25(a)fiv)) (note 25(a)fvj)
(Wose)  (W2sem)  (Waoe) (Wetzeiv)  (F226))
Note RMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 RMB 000 AMB 000 RMB000 AMB 000
Wit AREFT  AREFr  ARETr  AREFr  AREFT ARETT AREEr

Balance at R201651A 188
1 January 2016 #i 13494 21,627 29 (8,763) 5,509 46,053 77,949

Changes in equity for 2016: 2016EEEREE :
Total comprehensive income  ER&GAKEEE

for the year - - - (14,319) - 73,204 58885
Equity-settled share-ased ~ MEZEE

payments LRGSR 25(d)vi - - - - (800) - (800)
Shares issued on exercise  {TEERIEZ

of share option BEIR(A 25(c) 73 13,764 - - (4,530 - 9,307
Dividends approved in HREERE

respect of current year MRS 25(b) - (21,627) - - - (95,973) (117,600)
Balance at #2016%12A318

31 December 2016 o1 13,567 13,764 29 (23,082) 179 23,284 27,141
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B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

25

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

25 BF - EMKRARR (&)

(CONTINUED)
Movements in the components of equity (continued) (a) HERHFMBHIREE (F)
Capital Share-based
Share Share  redemption Exchange  compensation Retained
capital premium reserves reserve reserve earnings Total
NBfhaEE  (RHER)/
k% kAR  EIREGE EREA  HHREE REHE &t
(note 25(c))  (note 25(a)i))  note 25(d)fj)  (note 25(d)fiv))  (note 25w
(Wé2se))  (E25))  (WE2s(alfy)  (WEZstalliv))  (Big2eiellvi)
Note RMB000 RIMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RIMB000 RMB000 RMB000
i3 ABRTT  ABRTT  ARBTT  ARRFT  ABRFT  ARRFT  ARRTZ
Balance at R01TE1B1BH
1 January 2017 #h 13567 13,764 2 (23,082) 179 23,284 21,14
Changes in equity for 2017 2017EEHEEE :
Total comprehensive ERGANGES
income for the year - - - 18370 - 86,681 105,051
Foutysettled sherehased  LAEREE 2R
payments %f 250)vi - - - - 21 - pE]
Dividends approved in SAAEESER
respect of current year ke 25(b) - (13,764) - - - (75,199) (88,963)
Balance at #2017£12A31R
31 December 2017 ke 13,567 - 29 (4712) 410 34,766 44,060
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 BF - EiRRBRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Dividends (b) BB
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FEEREBHIFLERBHKEE
Company attributable to the year: ke -
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETF T
Interim dividend declared of EEIRFR3.9BMAY
HK3.9 cents per share FRHARR 2. (2016%F :
(2016: HK4.2 cents per share)  &#&4.2781l) 56,270 59,593
Final dividend proposed after the R ¥R HIR &R FAZ
end of the reporting period of  2.2/&LKIREIA% =
HK2.2 cents per share (20164 : EHg2.3741l)
(2016: HK2.3 cents per share) 30,013 34,493
86,283 94,086
The dividends proposed after the end of the reporting s HAR 1B bR O I B0 A
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end REEHRERRARE

(ii)

of the reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

(ii) EfIE 2 EIfER R EL B

Company attributable to the previous financial ETHREERE (REFE
year, approved and paid during the year: BHERBEM) -
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFr
Final dividend in respect of BEBEYREERN
the previous financial year, REARE B (R EFE
approved and paid during the ~ ZE#OEREA) -
year, of HK 2.3 cents per share  &A%2.37l(20164F :
(2016:HK 2.2 cents per share)  &A%2.27811l) 33,968 30,385
Special dividend in respect of  HRIBEATREERE R
the previous financial year, I B (R ez R R
approved and paid during the Bf) « FIRZHIL(2016
year, of HK nil cents per share £ : &A%2.05811l)
(2016: HK2.0 cents per share) - 27,622
33,968 58,007

HOSA International Limited i& ;Y EEEBRE AR



156

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 BF - EiRREE (&)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Share capital (c) B&=&x
Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZERBZTRZ
Number of Nominal value of
shares ordinary shares
B #E BEREE
‘000 HK$'000 RMB’000
FAR FET AR¥TT
Authorised: BE -
Ordinary shares of SREEC.ONEITZE
HK $0.01 each AR 10,000,000 100,000 87,450
Original shares, issued and ER{TR#BEZ
fully paid: BEE -
At 1 January 2016 201641818 1,658,881 16,589 13,494
Shares issued under share ~ BEREFEI T 2
option scheme 22T 8,395 84 73
At 31 December 2016, M2016F 128318 -
1 January 2017 and 20171 R1B &
31 December 2017 2017412 A31H 1,667,276 16,673 13,567

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard
to the Company’s residual assets.
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BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company may be
applied for payment of distributions or dividends to
shareholders provided that immediately following the
date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed
to be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Capital redemption reserve represented the nominal
amount of the shares repurchased.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve in the consolidated statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2017 and 2016
represented exchange differences and the excess
of value of assets injected to Haosha Industry by the
investors over nominal value of share capital, which
was accounted for in equity under capital reserve.

Statutory reserve

According to the Articles of Association of Haosha
Industry and Haosha Industry (Datian), the entities
are required to transfer part of its net profits (after
offsetting prior year losses), as approved by the board
of directors, to statutory general reserve. Haosha
Industry and Haosha Industry (Datian) are required to
appropriate general reserve at 10% of its profit after
taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital. As at 31 December
2017, appropriations were made by Haosha Industry
(Datian) to the general reserve at 10% of its profit after
taxation. However, such reserve made by Haosha
Industry reached the aforementioned percentage, thus
no further appropriation is required.

25 BF - EMKEARR (&)

(d) fEmEERER

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

B AR EFIROEE

REFEREREE AR
) R0 i 1B P P IR A5 0
RSB TR - R
BIRNDIRERE B Z
& ARREN A EELE
EREESIEMET -

BB FEER RO A
MHE -

£

20175 %2016412 A31
B2z &R RANE
NEBIRINEEZRRIGES
AENENVEECEEBES
RIEABENRD @ ZES
ARSI AR R E A
& -

BRI

BBEEDLBERESEE
(KE)RBEBZERME - 3Z
EEEVAEEHIREES
G At B E W B o AL A
(REBAEFEEBR) A
E—MfEHE - EDBERE
DEECKH)ABERES
B2 HR A ME IR E T AR
TR EE10%BIE—R
WiE EEEEESRED
FHEARH50% © 722017
£12A31H @ EABE(K
E)EHEBREEFE10%[m
— AR IR B R - HEED
EEEHNZEEERES L
MEDL - EtEEE—F
BEK o
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(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve of the Group comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of operations
outside the mainland China which are dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies as set out in
note 1(t).

Other reserve
The other reserve comprises the following:

- the difference of RMB91,124,000 represents
75% of the historical carrying value of
paid-in capital of Haosha Industry amounting
RMB91,125,000 acquired over the nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company amounting
HK$1,000 (RMB equivalent of approximately
RMB833); and

- the difference of HK$9,999 (RMB equivalent
of approximately RMB8,000) between the
historical carrying value of entire paid-in capital
of Hosa Group amounting to HK$10,000 and
the consideration of HK$1 acquired by Hosa
Investment.

Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve represents the
fair value of share options granted to certain directors,
senior managements, employees and others of the
Group.

Distributability of reserve

The aggregate amounts of distributable reserves (including
share premium and retained earnings) of the Company
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were HK$39,756,000
(RMB equivalent of approximately RMB34,766,000)
and HK$41,417,000 (RMB equivalent of approximately
RMB37,048,000) respectively.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(f)  Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access
to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholders returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by the PRC
municipal government authorities whereby the Group is required to
make contributions to the Schemes at the rates of 18% to 20% of
the eligible employees’ salaries. The local government authorities
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to retired
employees.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme is
a defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the Group and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits associated with the Schemes beyond the annual
contributions described above.
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(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are generally due
within 90 — 180 days from the date of billing. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 9% (2016: 7%)
and 37% (2016: 37%) of the total trade and other receivables
were due from the Group's largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 17.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

27 MBERRETERLAMREGE)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) REVEREBE
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible AEBAHELEEEEEH
for their own cash management, including the short-term AEMNHESER  BREESA®
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to REHREREEERAERNTE
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the HRIRSF K EWERKBL S
chairman of the Group when the borrowings exceed certain T8 E /R MK T - BIZEERIG A
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to SEESRIE - AEBHBUR
regularly monitor liquidity requirements and its compliance DEERTSHESHTRKLES
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient BERHENETER  UERES
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding RANRERDRSEESHKE
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity RIETHNEAFES  UEMNE
requirements in the short and longer term. HRRENREESF K -
All non-interest bearing financial liabilities of the Group REBEHR - ARFIEVBEE
are carried at amount not materially different from their HR—FERNE I EREE -
contractual undiscounted cash flow as all the financial REEFRB I EHBEBETIN
liabilities are with maturities within one year or repayable on HEAANBERIEASREVES
demand at the end of the reporting period. AERK S FEVIER
The contractual undiscounted cash flow and carrying amount R2017F12A831H @ EHIRITE
of the short-term bank loans and notes payable as at 31 REREBEHHRGRESRE
December 2017 are set out as follows: MEREESHIIAT
2017 2016
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
SRR SHRELA
Baw HRET
Carrying Carrying
Within 1 year amount at  Within 1 year amount at
orondemand 31 December orondemand 31 December
—ERE  ®12A31H —FRgk  RK12A31H
BRERK RE&H RARFH K IRES%E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARFFT ARETFTT AREFT
Bank loans PATER 385,898 377,135 325,962 320,632
Notes payable B 343,058 321,112 = -
728,956 698,247 325,962 320,632
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(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
loans and notes payable. The Group’s interest rate profile as

monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

27 MBERRETERLAMREGE)

(c) FIEmIE

AREBEAF R EERERRERIT
ERkEE - HERERENA
SEFEEAFMN T )

(i)  Interest rate profile (i) FEHE
2017 2016
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ERf) & BB A ot
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Fixed rate borrowings: B EFIRER :
Bank loans RITER 4.39% - 6.74% 315,470 5.05% -5.22% 114,000
Notes payable E3 9.17% 321,112 - -
Variable rate borrowings: TFENFIRMER
Bank loans PITEK 2.36% - 2.42% 61,665 1.01% —1.19% 206,632
698,247 320,632
@ The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly * ERFEZEESRTANTE
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts FEAFERA  HEEENBERLT
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, BENHE BemEERS R
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying BEEFRRR S XA HULA
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. AEIRACBRER B LXK -
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (ii) BEESHT

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 1% in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group's profit after tax for the year
and retained profits by approximately RMB1,171,000
(2016: decreased/increased the Group's profit after
tax for the year and retained profits by approximately
RMB1,182,000). Other components of equity would
not be affected by the changes in interest rates.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Currency risk

As the Group's principal activities are carried out in the PRC,
the Group's transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi,
which is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All
foreign exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take
place through the People’s Bank of China or other institutions
authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange
rates adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are the
rates of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China that
are determined largely by supply and demand.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2017, cash at bank
that were placed with banks in the PRC amounted to
RMB1,702,761,000 and RMB1,848,641,000, respectively.
Remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the
exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, The Group had no
significant foreign exchange exposure, as the bank loans
dominated in HK$ were held by the entity for which HK$ is
the functional currency.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a general
appreciation/depreciation of 1% in RMB, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group’s net profit for the year and retained profits by
approximately RMB905,000 (2016: increased/decreased by
RMB331,000).

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rate had been applied to re-measure the bank loan
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial statement of
foreign operations into the Group's presentation currency.
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(e)

Fair values

All financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 December
2016 and 2017.

28 COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2017
not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

27 MBERRETERLAMREGE)

(e)

SREE

M20164F K%2017F12A318 © Fi
EeRMEERBENRAEREL
DABELEEADF

28 i

(a)

120175128310 E R AR
FEHBROKRBAEFRIEZED
F:

At 31 December

®12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’'000 RMB 000
AR¥FIT AEET T
Contracted for SHES) - 2,400
Authorised but not contracted for ERIERERTLY - 12,200
- 14,600

At 31 December 2017, the total future minimum lease (b) 20175E12A31H ' REFRTR
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are HESHERMHRERERS
payable as follows: FTEREEEMT :
At 31 December
#®12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARTIT AR®FT
Within 1 year 1A 5,802 5,624
After 1 year but within 5 years 1F1&{B5F N 5,350 11,500
11,152 17,124

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017, the
Group is the lessee in respect of items of offices in Hong
Kong and mainland China held under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to five
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere
in the financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions. During the year, the directors
are of the view that the followings are related parties of the Group:

Name of party
&5 a8

BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

EXRBLXS

BRAERM TSR E M B0 T R AV BE RS 75
BRI - REBECRT THIEARE T
X5 FN BEERBUTHAEER
BRS¢

29

Relationship

£)E

Fujian Province Jinjiang City Haosha Garments Co., Ltd*
("Haosha Garments”)

BEEETIMEDRKBERAR(DEPEK])

Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited (“Ho Born
Investment”)

SEFRIREERER AR VE LK E |)**

Well Born Industrial Group Limited
(“Well Born Industrial”)
BEAEXEEERAREBERE])**

Quanzhou HOSA Fitness Club Co., Ltd.*
(“Haosha Fitness Centre”)
RNED R R HR AR (DR FBLESS])

Beijing Hongyu Innovative Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Hongyu")*
I REFRFREARAR(HIEREF])

75% and 25% owned by Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi
Hongyan respectively, who are the directors of the
Company

AN R A1 BT I 4 R IBHE £ 4 D BIHER75% K
25%

49.85% and 26.23% owned by Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr.
Shi Hongyan respectively
B BRI 78 A IR HE 55 4 53 I HE 5 49.85 % 52.26.23%

49.85% and 26.23% owned by Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr.
Shi Hongyan respectively
B B A R IE ST 4 53 Rl B 49.85% 12 26.23%

60% and 40% owned by Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi
Hongyan respectively
R BEHEIT 5F A SR BB IE 55 4 9 BIIHE B 60% K 40%

30% owned by Haosha (Shenzhen) Investment and
Consulting Company Limited*

BED (RN R E#EAARATRA30%

The official name of the Company is in Chinese.

*x The Chinese translation of the companies’ names is for reference .

only. The official names of the companies are in English.

The English translation of the Company’s name is for reference only. *

RAEBHRXBZEMRSE - ZLF
MEXBEATX

el

REAEHOP B FEHRD2E - ZAR
MEREBBRHEX -

HOSA International Limited i& ;Y EEEBRE AR
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B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s Directors as
disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees

as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

29 EXEBARH(E)

(a) FEEEARHFH

AEETEEEASHNFHM(BRE
M7 RBEEN TARREERN
RIBAR M S EN N T&
TEREHHESNFR)MNT

Year ended 31 December

Short-term employee benefits

Equity settled share-based payments

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

REEEBET
DA sR A E 2 Bt S
FUE HFOR KRG IR

BE12A3MALEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARETIT
5,307 4,502
231 179
44 27
5,582 4,708

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (note 5(b)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 EXHBAES(IE)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Transactions with the related parties (b) HRRBHHES
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31ALLEE
2017 2016
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
iz ARTT AR MFor

Purchases of products EEEm

— Haosha Garments — D BIKR 7,476 3,461

Receiving processing services  EEVE LN LIRS

— Haosha Garments —EDBIR 56,363 51,224
Loans from immediate REEBERFHER (i)

controlling party

- Ho Born Investment — B E 5,771 52,396
Repayments of loans from EBEREEEERTHNER

immediate controlling party

— Ho Born Investment —EHEE 56,473 =
Sales of goods SHE

— Haosha Fitness Centre —E e B (R 44ER 7,893 -
Loan to an associate BT E N ER

— Beijing Hongyu Sl 100,000 -
Interest income from UG ER Bt = X R KB

an associate

- Beijing Hongyu —ItREF 989 =

Notes: HieF -

(i) Loans from the immediate controlling party is unsecured, (i) REEEER S E RI &K
interest-free and repayable within one year. The loans is o REWEBE—FAEE - It
included in “Trade and other payables” (note 20). BEXBEaEB S REMEMNTKA

(Fi7E20) ©

(ii) As at 31 December 2017, key management personnel of the (ii) RK2017F12A318 » "EE
Group provided guarantee for the Group’s bank loans with an MIRTERBERFAEARE
outstanding balance of RMB36,300,000 (note 21). 36,300,000(Fff5E21)FH EBEEE

ANBREER -

(i) As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Shi Hongliu, Mr. Shi Hongyan, Ho (i)  M2017F128318 @ MR L
Born Investment and Well Born Industrial provided guarantee A MBS A  EHRERE
for the Group's notes payable with an outstanding balance of REERAEEZRIEHRER -
RMB321,112,000 (note 22). HREAARKES21,112,0007T

(Ht&E22) °

HOSA International Limited i& ;Y EEEBRE AR
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B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(c)

Balances with the related parties

As the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following balances with related parties:

29

EXRBAXS (&)

(c) ERBBHRE

RI|BERR - AEBEEAR ST E
NoIAESR

Year ended 31 December

#E12A31HILEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETFTT AR¥TFT
Prepayments TEfR
— Haosha Garments — D EIR 2,978 767
Bills payable FERRE
— Haosha Garments —EPBIR (31,940) (2,000)
Amount due to the immediate R BRI
controlling party
— Ho Born Investment —EPIE - (53,671)
Trade receivables FEUTER TR
— Haosha Fitness Centre — R B (R 4EER 7,260 =
Loan to an associate BN TR E AR ER
— Beijing Hongyu =R 100,000 =
Interest receivables JFEUH B,
— Beijing Hongyu —tREF 989 =
79,287 (54,904)
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BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

30 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 30 AFIEEMBERAE
POSITION
2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
HiaE AR¥TFIT AREFT
Non-current asset ERBFE
Investments in subsidiaries KB A RRIEE 13 = =
Total non-current asset Frpw=ELE 0000 - -
Current assets TENEE
Other receivables H A FEGR 433,783 292,264
Cash and cash equivalents Re RRSEFEY 2,569 5,837
Total current assets mENEE#E 436,352 298,101
Current liabilities mERAE
Other payables Hh FERTRK 9,515 63,728
Bank loans FITEX 61,665 206,632
Notes payable EE7 22 321,112 =
Total current liabilities mE R A 392,292 270,360
Net current assets R EERE 44,060 27,741
Total assets less current HBEERRDHAR HE
liabilities/Net assets BE 44,060 27,741
Capital and reserves BEXR R
Share capital A&z 25(c) 13,567 13,567
Reserves 5 25(d) 30,493 14,174
Total equity EaeaE 44,060 27,741
31 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 31 HERREREHNA

PARTY

At 31 December 2017, the Directors consider the immediate
controlling party of the Group to be Ho Born Investment Holdings
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. This
entity does not produce financial statements available for public use.
The Directors consider the ultimate controlling party of the Group
to be Mr Shi Hongliu.

M2017F12831H ' EERAEREH
MEEEHH BERBICEERERA
A MK AR EBEREES M
3o ZERVERIEAREHAN
BHRK - BEERANEE ZREIZESH
BHEERITE ©

HOSA International Limited i& ;Y EEEBRE AR
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B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 32 #XE2017F12A31HLLFE

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED ERMGEREXAIEERT - #3T
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED HARBREMTRERE

31 DECEMBER 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has BEEARETEBE - B ENE
issued a number of amendments and new standards which are not S RMEBUEEE£2017F12831H
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2017 and which have L\EFE MR EREUSET KT ZER - m
not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the It S5 B 75 R 3R W IR AN RZ FAE R AT
following which may be relevant to the Group. R o ZHEER] R ERIBIET

A REEANER AR

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after
RLT Bz #%
BRtREY & SRR 3

Amendments to IFRS 2, Classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions
BREATSIRELERIFE 25 - G TR B K51 =

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

BRI IR E LR F 155 - K EF A AR e

IFRS 9, Financial instruments
BB BT HRS 2E RIS - A T A

IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

B B 15 S e R R 58 225 SMNEE 3R 5 B TR MR (1) $11B

Amendments to |IAS 28, Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures
R ERE 285 18R] - REFEE AL AR S B 1L RA#ER

IFRS 16, Leases
BRI B R 1658 - FHE

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

WA TS SRS RRRE R 23R AT B T HEE .2 S FE

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 cycle
BURR B 75 2R 5 22 RI201 5 2201 75 A H 2 SR iU

1 January 2018
20181 A1H

1 January 2018
201841 A18

1 January 2018
201851 H1H

1 January 2018
2018%F1A1H

1 January 2019
20194F1 A1H

1 January 2019
201951 A18

1 January 2019
201951 A1H

1 January 2019
20191 A1H
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BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group
has identified some aspects of the new standards which may
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below.
While the assessment has been substantially completed for IFRS
9 and IFRS 15, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the
standards may differ as the assessment completed to date is based
on the information currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standards are initially applied
in the Group's interim financial report for the six months ended
30 June 2018. The Group may also change its accounting policy
elections, including the transition options, until the standards are
initially applied in that financial report.

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

IFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for
financial instruments, IAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement. |IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets, including
the measurement of impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting. On the other hand, IFRS 9 incorporates without
substantive changes the requirements of IAS 39 for recognition
and derecognition of financial instruments and the classification of
financial liabilities.

32

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

BE2017F12A31HLLEE
ERMGEREXAIEERT - #3T
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B 1758 A &R BB 7SR 4 B R P A X
AR IR E— PR E o ANEBEJRA]
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% °

ERMBHREENSENR  @RMIA

BRI B 5 i 5 R E 9N B &
BTASRENREAED  BERES
HAIE395 - @MIE : BWRKEE o
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B ORISR I EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (CONTINUED)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group's financial
statements are as follows:

(a)

Classification and measurement

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for
financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) as follows:

° The classification for debt instruments is determined
based on the entity's business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument
is classified as FVTOCI then effective interest,
impairments and gains/losses on disposal will be
recognised in profit or loss.

. For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL
regardless of the entity’s business model. The only
exception is if the equity security is not held for trading
and the entity irrevocably elects to designate that
security as FVTOCI. If an equity security is designated
as FVTOCI then only dividend income on that security
will be recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses and
impairments on that security will be recognised in other
comprehensive income without recycling.

With respect to the Group's loan to an associate, the Group is
still assessing whether the current classification as financial
assets measured at amortised cost will still be appropriate
under IFRS 9, and further analysis is required to determine
whether this change in accounting policy may have a material
impact on the amounts reported in any given reporting
period.

The Group expects that its other financial assets/liabilities
currently measured at amortised cost will continue with
their respective classification and measurements upon the
adoption of IFRS9.
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BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (CONTINUED)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in IFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in IAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” model.
Under the expected credit loss model, it will no longer be
necessary for a loss event to occur before an impairment
loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required to recognise
and measure either a 12-month expected credit loss or a
lifetime expected credit loss, depending on the asset and
the facts and circumstances. The Group expects that the
application of the expected credit loss model will result in
earlier recognition of credit losses. However, a more detailed
analysis is required to determine the extent of the impact.

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising
revenue from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will replace
the existing revenue standards, IAS 18, Revenue, which covers
revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of services, and
IAS 11, Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting
for revenue from construction contracts. The core principle of
IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. The standard introduces a
b-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (CONTINUED)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer obtains
control of the promised good or service in the contract. IFRS 15
identifies 3 situations in which control of the promised good or
service is regarded as being transferred over time:

(@) When the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the entity’s performance, as the
entity performs;

(b)  When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example work in progress) that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced;

() When the entity’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the entity and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into any
of these 3 situations, then under IFRS 15 the entity recognises
revenue for the sale of that good or service at a single point in
time, being when control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership is only one of the indicators that will be considered
in determining when the transfer of control occurs. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

The Group has preliminarily assessed the impact of IFRS 15, and
consider the requirements to recognise revenue under IFRS 15 is
similar to the Group's current revenue recognition policy for sales
of goods and therefore, the Group expects that the application of
IFRS 15 will not have a significant impact on the Group's results of
operations and financial position.
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BSOS AR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (CONTINUED)

IFRS 16, Leases

Currently the Group enters into some leases as the lessee. Once
IFRS 16 is adopted, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the
lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the present
value of the minimum future lease payments and will recognise
a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of
this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy
of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a
systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the
lessee can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term
leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to
leases of low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses
would continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's accounting as a lessee
of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are currently
classified as operating leases. The application of the new
accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in both
assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the period of
the lease. At 31 December 2017 the Group's future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases amount
to RMB11,152,000 for properties, the majority of which is payable
either between 1 and 5 years after the reporting date or in more
than 5 years. Some of these amounts may therefore need to be
recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use
assets, once IFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform
a more detailed analysis to determine the amounts of new assets
and liabilities arising from operating lease commitments on
adoption of IFRS 16, after taking into account the applicability of
the practical expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into
or terminated between now and the adoption of IFRS 16 and the
effects of discounting.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. The Group has decided not to early adopt IFRS 16 in
its 2018 consolidated financial statements.
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Five Years Financial Summary

FEFEMBEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 25 B #5875

P UA RS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SHUBRAE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AB¥TFT ANEETT AREFT AREFT ARETT
Non-current assets FERBDEE
Property, plant and equipment #1% = k& 1@ 93,485 85,299 79,939 83,808 59,126
Lease prepayments AL 16,904 17,319 17,734 18,149 18,664
Intangible assets ﬂﬂﬁiﬁ?‘ 1,306 513 769 522 499
Interest in an associate il 7&5 100,000 - = = =
Loan to an associate ?éﬁiﬁ”ﬁ?ﬁ%@ B 100,000 = = = =
Deferred tax assets RIER 1B & B 687 3,021 3,966 3,422 3,514
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 312,382 106,152 102,408 105,901 81,703
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 288,279 220,255 259,079 169,096 151,409
Trade and bills receivables 5 U N B Z1E 474,547 354,594 248,486 269,222 247,274
Deposits and prepayments &% KIERT 65,035 40,430 45,524 22,938 17,693
Other receivables H b fEUGR 32,844 26,523 50,024 28,812 3,991
Pledged deposits BEEHFR 132,917 255,959 174,916 15,832 17,684
Cash at bank and in hand ROIGRRFERS 1,722,589 1,453,062 1,302,500 1,259,737 1,059,149
Total current assets MBEERE 2,716,211 2,350,823 2,080,529 1,765,637 1,497,200
Total assets HERE 3,028,593 2,456,975 2,182,937 1,871,538 1,578,903
Current liabilities nERR
Bank loans RITER 377,135 320,632 129,739 = =
Trade payables BIEMNR 35,842 20,052 97,427 83,516 50,987
Bills payable ES 157,933 124,098 118,862 48,223 60,945
Receipts in advance TBUGR 2,167 1,455 18,463 9,985 5,634
Other payables and accruals ~ E-AfLfER TR K fEETE 55,820 90,423 86,134 66,310 56,571
Notes payable =g 321,112 = = = =
Current taxation BIEA%ETE 38,685 33,346 10,768 15,161 8,710
Total current liabilities BB AR 988,694 590,006 461,393 223,195 182,847
Non-current liabilities FnBRR
Deferred tax liabilities EETRIBAE 7,341 10,782 10,782 7,197 =
Total liabilities BERE 996,035 600,788 472,175 230,392 182,847
Shareholders’ equity BEES 2,032,558 1,856,187 1,710,762 1,641,146 1,396,056
Total liabilities and equity BERIEREE 3,028,593 2,456,975 2,182,937 1,871,538 1,578,903
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Five Years Financial Summary

A FHBEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

EtHREREMFSKER
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Continuing operations: SEEEEH
Revenue S 1,198,769 1,103,540 1,178,001 1,216,546 1,021,520
Cost of sales SHEE B A (698,656) (536,213) (573,413) (576,273) (431,209)
Gross profit EH 500,113 567,327 604,588 640,273 590,311
Other revenue E AUz A
— Interest income —FBUHA 37,978 40,900 36,633 43,560 11,735
- Government grants — BT #aRh 2,300 12,578 24,418 29,259 12,999
— Others — HAth 1,050 4,372 779 323 771
41,328 57,850 61,830 73,142 25,505
Other net (loss)/income  Efh(E518) WA
HER
— Exchange (loss)/gain —[EX (F18) M (2,327) 1,667 (519) (2,428) 5,457
— Others — HAth (1,354) (374) (7) (247) (2,682)
(3,681) 1,193 (526) (2,675) 2,775
Selling and distribution  $4% R AL SHAK AR
expenses (119,736) (185,689) (206,770) (133,494) (104,537)
Administrative and other 77 & E-Ath &8 & FE s
operating expenses (101,847) (109,198) (119,228) (88,281) (75,223)
Profit from operations PtV 316,177 331,483 339,894 488,965 438,831
Finance costs U DN (23,811) (4,307) (1,002) - (398)
Profit before taxation BR A% BT A E 292,366 327,176 338,892 488,965 438,433
Income tax expenses SRR (45,842) (58,339) (71,617) (85,803) (68,074)
Profit for the year FERHE 246,524 268,837 267,275 403,162 370,359
Exchange differences on  #25 m Bl (A i 35 SN /B
translation of financial N AR 75 R 3R RO B
statements of operations i =%
outside the mainland
China 18,579 (14,319) (2,433) 1,996 (7,513)
Total comprehensive A R AR R (G
income for the year EireWa1gs
attributable to equity
shareholders of the
Company 265,103 254,518 264,842 405,158 362,846
Earnings per share GRAEF
— basic and diluted —EARREE
(RMB) (AE#T) 0.15 0.16 0.16 0.24 0.23
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Five Years Financial Summary

FEFEMBEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
aEHReRER
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TT ARETT AR®FTT ARETT

Operating activities BEED

Cash generated from KEMSHES
operations 129,443 116,534 306,478 440,921 428,706
Income tax paid B ATSH (41,610) (34,816) (72,969) (72,083) (67,129)

Net cash generated EEITHMRERS

from operating BE
activities 87,833 81,718 233,509 368,858 361,577
Investing activities B’EEHE

Payment for purchase BEYE  BEREE
of property, plantand {53

equipment (11,527) (8,097) (6,210) (31,170) (17,475)
Payment for purchase of HEE & EEMNK
Intangible assets (589) (149) (622) (256) (421)

Proceeds from disposal  HEWZE « BE M&iE
78 £

of property, plantand  FT{S7UE

equipment 61 - - 14 -
Interest received 2 UERALE 38,561 41,519 40,095 22,519 15,045
(Increase)/decrease in BEHRFER(EEM),

pledged deposits Vs 123,042 (81,043) (159,084) 1,852 80,594
Placement of time EARZEBBBE=(E

deposits with original R 2 TE 8K

maturity over three

months (514,407) (1,364,266) (1,281,500) (1,222,298) (723,950)
Maturity of time deposits FRZ|/HIBBB=EAZ

with original maturity JEHRTF 3B AR e

over three months 508,000 1,281,500 1,222,298 723,950 327,977
Payment for investment &R & B & A B

in an associate (100,000) - - - -
Loan to an associate BERTHENTER (100,000) = = = =
Net cash used in BEEEFRA

investing activities H&sH (56,859) (130,536) (185,023) (505,389) (318,230)
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Five Years Financial Summary

FFEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEHI)  FAAREZTR)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

EHBASTER(E)
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT
Financing activities AU EED
Proceeds from bank RITE RS A
loans 348,977 310,489 129,606 - -
Repayment of bank loans [E:E2R1TE (279,497) (132,076) - - (88,644)
Proceeds from loan HEERBRRERMG
from the immediate KIE
controlling shareholder 5,771 52,396 - - -
Repayments of loans BEERRREFER
from controlling
shareholders (56,473) - - - -
Proceeds from shares RIS AT 8B TR
issued under share 3PS E
option scheme - 9,307 4,127 709 8,828
Net proceeds from B R ERMDFTSHRIEF
placing shares ) - - - - 116,872
Payment for repurchase  A&{H B& I~ 7k
of shares - = (898) (5,368) =
Net proceeds from BOIEBFERE
notes issued 323,823 - - - -
Interest paid ENFE (22,119) (4,323) (892) = (569)
Dividends paid to equity B fIAR AR
shareholders of the AR
Company (88,336) (119,179) (196,868) (156,570) (141,672)
Net cash generated R EEFE
from/(used in) (FRA)R&PEH
financing activities 232,146 116,614 (64,925) (161,229) (110,684)
Net increase/(decrease) HE&ERREFEY
in cash and cash 1Bin (R )R8
equivalents 263,120 67,796 (16,439) (297,760) (67,337)
Cash and cash M1B1EMBRER
equivalents REeEEEY
at 1 January 88,796 21,000 37,439 335,199 402,536
Cash and cash BM12A31MHRER
equivalents at Be&EEY
31 December 351,916 88,796 21,000 37,439 335,199
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Five Years Financial Summary

FEFEMBEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHEHS)  GUAREZT)

MAJOR FINANCIAL RATIOS

EFEMBHLEF
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
A. Profitability ratios: A BFgEHLLE:
1. Growth/(decline) 1. BR/(TH)
a. Revenue a EE® 8.6% (6.3%) (3.2%) 19.1% 20.5%
b.  Net profit b. FFE (8.3%) 0.6% (33.7%) 8.9% 11.9%
c. Total comprehensive income ¢ BENmER 4.2% (3.9%) (34.6%) 11.7% 9.6%
2. Profit margins 2. HEx
a.  Gross profit margin a. EA= 41.7% 51.4% 51.3% 52.6% 57.8%
b.  Operating profit margin b. EEMEE 26.4% 30.0% 28.9% 40.2% 43.0%
c. Total comprehensive income ¢ BENEEER 22.1% 23.1% 225% 33.3% 35.5%
d.  Net profit margin d FAEE 20.6% 24.4% 22.7% 33.1% 36.3%
3. Return on equity/total assets 3. B/ BEEDRE
a.  Return on equity a. HEREHE 13.6% 14.3% 15.8% 26.7% 29.6%
b.  Return on total assets b. BEEERE 9.7% 11.0% 13.1% 23.5% 25.5%
B. Liquidity ratios: B. mEE&LLE:
1. Liquidity ratios 1. RPELHE
a.  Current ratios a  mEE 275 398 451 7.91 8.19
b.  Quick ratios b. HEfELE 246 361 3.9 7.15 7.36
2. Tumover ratios 2. [FELE
a.  Stock turnover days 2. FEAERY 132.8 163.1 136.3 1015 107.3
b. Debtors' tunover days b, EUKRFAZRH 126.3 99.7 80.2 716 89.4
c.  Creditors’ turnover days c. ENEFAERH 88.3 1227 1108 772 79.0
C. Capital adequacy ratios: C. BFREEILE:
1. Gearing ratio 1. BELE
a.  Bankloan & notes payable a. BOERREE 23.1% 13.0% 5.9% - -
2. Debt to net worth ratio 2. EEHELE
a.  Debt to equity ratio a. AfEEGLE 42.1% 24.0% 14.5% 2.9% 4.4%
b. Interest coverage b. FIEENE 133 77.0 339.2 N/A 1,100.80
3. Effective tax rate 3. ERHX 15.7% 17.8% 21.1% 17.5% 15.50%
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